
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, December 8, 2016, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), 

MORPC Chair 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Community Leader Spotlight: Ohio History Connection – Burt Logan, 

Ohio History Connection Executive Director & CEO 

 

1:40 p.m. 4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of November 10, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Proposed Resolution 21-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director 

to Enter into and Administer as the Prime Contract Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching 

System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos" 

c. Proposed Resolution 25-16: “Authorizing the Executive Director 

to Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support 

the Smart Columbus Project” 

 

1:41 p.m. 5. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 

1:50 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 22-16: “Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and 

Fund Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission for 2017” – Shawn Hufstedler, 

MORPC Chief of Staff & Director of Operations   

 

 Committees 

 

2:00 p.m. 7. Building Committee – Derrick Clay (Franklin County), Building 

Committee Chair 

 

2:05 p.m. 8. Regional Data Advisory Committee – Victor Paini (Madison 

Township) Regional Data Advisory Committee Chair 

 



Commission Meeting Agenda 

December 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

2:10 p.m. 9. Regional Policy Roundtable – Steve Campbell (City of Columbus), 

Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Proposed Resolution 23-16: ”Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 

Public Policy Agenda” – Kim Maggard (City of Whitehall), Public 

Policy Agenda Working Group Chair 

b. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter and 

Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 

 

2:25 p.m. 10. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte (Union County), 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

a. Proposed Resolution 24-16: ”Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2020 

Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

b. Air Quality Update – Christina O’Keeffe, MORPC Energy & Air 

Quality Director 

 

 11. Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Matt Greeson (City of 

Worthington), MORPC Chair  

2:35 p.m. a. Call to Order – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

2:36 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 

2:40 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of November 10, 2016 Transportation Policy 

Committee Meeting Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-16-16: “Accepting MORPC as the 

Prime Holder of a Transportation Demand Management 

(TDM) and Ridematching System Platform Contract for the 

Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) with 

RideAmigos” 

 Proposed Resolution T-17-16: ”Amending the State Fiscal 

Year (SFY) 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program 

including changes to Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA’s) 

Section 5307 Program of Projects” 

 Proposed Resolution T-18-16: “Authorizing the Executive 

Director to execute an agreement with the City of Columbus 

to support the Smart Columbus Project” 

 

2:45 p.m. d. Attributable Funds Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation 

Systems & Funding Director 

 

2:50 p.m. e. Rickenbacker Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation 

Systems & Funding Director 

 

2:55 p.m. f. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Matt Greeson 

(City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

 



Commission Meeting Agenda 

December 8, 2016 

Page 3 

 

2:56 p.m. 12. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:57 p.m. 13. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 14. Adjourn – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, January 12, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, November 10, 2016 

1:35 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Pat Blayney 

Stacey Boumis 

Susan Brobst 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Carolyn Casper 

Franklin Christman 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

William Dorman 

Terry Emery 

Matt Greeson 

Bill Habig 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Tim Lecklider 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Cornell Robertson for Dean Ringle 

David Simmons 

Ted Simon 

Joe Stefanov 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Christie Ward 

Nancy White 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Thom Slack Curtis Stitt Carrie Woody

 

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney Tim Moloney

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Nathaniel Kaelin 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone 

 

Guests 

Mike Schadek, City of Columbus Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

 

Chair Matt Greeson called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance.  

Chair Greeson recognized and thanked veterans for their service. 

 

Scheduled speaker Columbus Chamber President & CEO Don DePerro was unable to attend today’s 

Commission meeting. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Pat Blayney made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Bill LaFayette; motion passed.   

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock thanked the veterans for their service.  

 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 10, 2016 

Page 2 

 
Mr. Murdock also thanked the Commission Members who are involved in public service whether through 

service in a public office or as one whose work involves providing support to public officials. 

 

A group of over 20 from the International Visitors Council of Columbus came to MORPC to learn about the 

efforts of the Regional Data Advisory Committee and the data advisory lab. 

 

MORPC Team Members met our goal in this year’s Annual Combined Charitable Giving Campaign. 

 

The Public Policy Agenda and the Regional Sustainability Agenda will be presented at today’s meeting. Both 

proposed documents provide valuable guidance and direction from the Commission to the MORPC Team.  For 

the first time, both agendas tie directly to MORPC's goals outlined in the most recent Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan.  

 

Mr. Murdock thanked Commission Members who attended the Summit on Sustainability. Over 550 attended 

the Summit, breaking the record attendance. The Summit included significant local, corporate and non-profit 

involvement.  

 

MORPC’s weatherization program helps families control energy costs and make their homes safer. The 

October 25 Weatherization Showcase was held in Groveport.  The homeowner credits the program for saving 

her life. Her furnace, which the MORPC Team had replaced immediately, was emitting noxious gas into her 

home. 

 

The Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) program is gathering a list of unfunded infrastructure projects on a 

county by county level in order to better position Central Ohio for economic and community development. 

MORPC is partnering with Columbus 2020 on the program that will help the region by matching up funding 

opportunities and sharing priorities with legislative decision makers. MORPC will provide technical assistance 

in developing funding strategies. The goal is to have the list completed by January 2017. 

 

The application deadline to participate in MORPC’s 2017 Summer Internship Program is November 10. 

Participation is up from last year, twenty-one requests have been received so far. 

 

The next Southeast Regional Collaboration is November 28 in Pickerington and will include presentations on 

the Rickenbacker Area Study and the Rickenbacker Airport Master Plan.  

 

The “Lessons Learned” holiday lunch for Commission Members is Thursday, December 8 at noon. The 

interactive meeting is an opportunity to share experiences and discuss 2017 challenges. Contact Eileen Leuby 

with questions.  

 

Mr. Murdock congratulated MORPC’s insight2050 Team for receiving the Outstanding Overall Achievement 

Award for a TMA MPO by the Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations (AMPO). This national award 

honors the efforts of a large MPO that has successfully advanced and promoted metropolitan transportation 

planning.  

 

Committees 

 

Building Committee Report – Derrick Clay, Building Committee Chair 

Derrick Clay reported that Columbus State Community College (CSCC) is no longer a viable partnership option 

for MORPC’s next building. CSCC took a different direction. The Building Committee continues to look for other 

options. MORPC Staff and the agency realtors are looking at other locations as well as considering whether to 

stay in the current location. An RFP asking for real estate options is being released soon. Please send location 

suggestions to Derrick Clay, William Murdock or Shawn Hufstedler. MORPC’s current lease runs through 

October 2017. 

 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 10, 2016 

Page 3 

 
Transportation Policy Committee – Matt Greeson, MORPC Chair  

Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 1:50 p.m. The session 

adjourned at 2:05 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Derrick Clay made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by Erik 

Janas; motion passed.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee approved the proposal for the reorganized Water Quality Working 

Group. Beginning in 2017 and led by a newly appointed chair and vice chair, the group will be called the 

Central Ohio Water Resources Working Group and will meet every other month. The group will focus on a 4-

year action plan.  

 

Steve Stolte presented a Summit on Sustainability recap. The presenting sponsors were Donatos and Capitol 

Waste. The morning plenary session included keynote Spencer Reeder and a panel discussion led by Kate 

Bartter.  The Central Ohio Green Region Awards winners were: 

 William A. Lewis, Jr. Green Mobility Award – JM Rayburn, City of Dublin 

 Green Collaborative Award – Green Columbus, City of Columbus, Green Funds of the Columbus 

Foundation for their work on Earth Day 2016 

 Green Leader Award – Dale Arnold, Ohio Farm Bureau 

The theme of the lunch plenary session was feeding our economy. Six speakers discussed different aspects of 

the food supply system. 

 

 Draft Regional Sustainability Agenda – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair and 

Karen Angelou, Regional Sustainability Agenda Working Group Member 

Steve Stolte and Karen Angelou presented the Regional Sustainability Agenda Proposal. Copies of the 

Draft Regional Sustainability Agenda were provided. Please provide input to Kerstin Carr or Christina 

O’Keeffe by November 23. The Sustainability Advisory Committee approved the draft Agenda and 

recommends adoption by the Executive Committee and Commission at the December meetings. 

 
Regional Policy Roundtable – Steve Campbell, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

At the October Regional Policy Roundtable meeting, the Roundtable adopted the 2017-2018 Public Policy 

Agenda, discussed broadband and cell tower right-of-way issues, and received a legislative update. 

 

 Draft Public Policy Agenda – Steve Campbell, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair and Laura Koprowski, 

MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 

Steve Campbell and Laura Koprowski presented the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. Steve Campbell 

acknowledged MORPC Team Members Laura Koprowski and Joe Garrity for their work on the agenda. 

 

 Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 
Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o Election results 

o Lame duck session 

o Changes at the federal level 

 

See the November 2016 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

Steve Stolte made a motion to adjourn the Commission Meeting, second by Bill LaFayette; motion passed. The 

Commission Meeting adjourned at 2:43 p.m.  

 

http://www.morpc.org/our-region/members/index
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-10-2016RSA.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016DraftRSA.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-10-2016PPA.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-10-2016LegUp.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 10, 2016 

Page 4 

 
 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 21-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Enter into and Administer as the Prime Contract Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching 

System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos" 

 

This resolution authorizes the executive director to enter into and administer as the 

prime contract holder with RideAmigos. This contract will be subcontracted with 

OARC members and other participants for TDM and ridematching services. MORPC’s 

Transportation Policy Committee Resolution T-16-16 accepts MORPC as the prime 

holder of the TDM and ridematching contract with RideAmigos for OARC.  

 

The intent of this resolution is a result of OARC’s Air Quality and Rideshare 

Subcommittee’s year-long commitment and collaboration to improve air quality and 

rideshare management, services, programming and administration for its 

metropolitan planning organization (MPO) members and others with funding from the 

Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) from the Ohio Development Services 

Agency (ODSA). 

 

OARC hired and collaborated with a professional consultant that conducted a 

feasibility study on the advancement of TDM throughout Ohio’s MPO regions. The 

study viewed TDM as a wide array of programs and policies that effectively make up 

an MPO’s strategy to encourage the more efficient use of transportation 

infrastructure by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) on the transportation system 

(i.e., reducing the demand of single-occupancy vehicles [SOVs] on roads). The study 

also suggested that OARC adopt TDM as a means to enhance mobility options in a 

manner that contributes to local economic development strategies and the 

promotion of placemaking. 

 

As an outcome of the feasibility study, OARC sought proposals for a comprehensive 

web-based TDM platform that will serve as the backbone of future TDM services 

provided to the general public. To create efficiencies, this platform will combine and 

enhance the current ridematching services provided by OhioRideshare and 

RideshareOhio into one scalable TDM platform. The new platform will go beyond 

standard ridematching services (i.e., static rideshare matchlist reporting) and 

incorporate comprehensive TDM services that allow MPOs and others to support and 



 

 

 

Resolution 21-16 Memo 

Page 2 

incentivize the many alternative transportation options available to travelers that will 

reduce VMT.  

 

Using the RideAmigos platform OARC will capitalize on various personal mobility 

options available to the workforce as a means to promote place-making strategies 

developed by local governments and enhance economic development opportunities 

sought by local chambers of commerce. The TDM platform will have the capability for 

MPOs to manage relationships with employers, area mobility managers and human 

services where staff can then help administer TDM programs unique to each 

employer/activity center that wishes to capitalize upon this economic development 

resource. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 21-16 



RESOLUTION 21-16 

 

“Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into and Administer as the Prime Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching System Platform Contract for the 

Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) is designated as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Columbus 

metropolitan area; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a member of OARC with other Ohio MPOs that have air quality and rideshare 

programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, OARC has an Air Quality and Rideshare Subcommittee that sought to upgrade and 

combine two distinct and incompatible commuter rideshare platforms into one robust platform with 

data analysis tools to serve multiple areas in Ohio that would assist in the reduction of single-

occupancy vehicles (SOVs), vehicle emissions, and administrative costs for users; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee and MORPC hired a professional consultant using Local Government 

Innovation (LGIF) grant funds from the Ohio Development Services Agency to conduct a feasibility 

study and assist the OARC Subcommittee in writing an RFP to solicit and choose a vendor; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee members included staff from MORPC and the following MPOs 

1. Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study (AMATS) 

2. Eastgate Regional Council of Governments [Youngstown] 

3. Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC) [Dayton] 

4. Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (NOACA) [Cleveland] 

5. Ohio-Kentucky-Indiana Regional Council of Governments (OKI) [Cincinnati] 

6. Toledo Metropolitan Area Council of Governments (TMACOG) 

who worked collectively through the process in selecting a vendor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee unanimously selected RideAmigos as the vendor to combine and 

enhance the two dated systems into a current state-of-the-art comprehensive web-based TDM 

platform; and 

 

WHEREAS, other entities such as mobility managers, human service agencies, activity centers and 

employers in Ohio will have the opportunity to use it; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s executive director is accepting MORPC as the prime holder of the contract with 

RideAmigos as described in MORPC Commission Resolution T-16-16; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into and administer as the prime 

holder of the RideAmigos a three year agreement for up to $210,000 with the 

opportunity to renew an additional two years and subcontract with OARC MPOs and 

others.   

 

 

 



Resolution 21-16 

Page 2 

 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve change orders for amounts up to 

the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further authorization 

from this Commission.   

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Prepared by:  Transportation Systems & Funding Staff 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 
 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 25-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the 

Smart Columbus Project" 

 

Proposed Resolution 25-16 is authorizing the Executive Director to execute an 

agreement with the City of Columbus to support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

The Smart Columbus Project is the result of planning and awards received as the 

winner of the U.S. Department of Transportation Smart City Challenge. Through the 

U.S. DOT’s vision, the city and its partners, including MORPC, have proposed the 

development of a multi-component transportation project deploying smart 

technology.  

 

The city will build elements of “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation system 

showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people 

to transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, 

reduce carbon emissions, and enhance mobility.” This project will have 

transformative effects on municipal transportation and will be a blueprint for 

transferable technology throughout the region, the nation and the world. 

The agreement memorializes MORPC’s support of the Smart Columbus Project via 

provision of funding, materials, goods, or technical support. Specific terms of the 

agreement include MORPC commitments of:  

 

 $600,000.00 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a Transportation 

Improvement Program amendment for a qualifying project within the MORPC 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area  

 Reporting associated MORPC progress and costs associated with the 

project’s Key Performance Indicators  

 Collaboration and coordination with the MORPC Regional Data Advisory 

Committee. 

 

 

Attachment: Resolution 25-16 



RESOLUTION 25-16 

 

“Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support 

the Smart Columbus Project” 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus has been selected as the winner of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation Smart City Challenge, aimed at creating “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation 

system showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people to 

transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, reduce carbon 

emissions, and enhance mobility;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus will receive federal and private grant awards totaling up to $50 

million from the U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) and Paul G. Allen’s Vulcan, Inc. to 

implement “a holistic, integrated approach to improving surface transportation performance within 

and integrating this approach with other smart city domains such as public safety, public services, 

and energy;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus is leveraging those investments to form partnerships with a 

consortium currently numbered at 27 public and private entities, securing additional funding and in-

kind contributions currently valued at $90 million to bring its Smart Columbus Vision to fruition; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes that the advancements conceived of during the Demonstration 

Deployment period of the Smart Columbus Program will have transformative effects on municipal 

transportation and will be a blueprint for transferable technology; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC has offered its patronage to the City of Columbus through the provision of 

funding, materials, goods, or technical support as part of that effort without expectation of receiving 

remuneration or tangible benefits from the City of Columbus; and  

WHEREAS, the purposes of this Agreement are to memorialize the partnership between the parties 

and to set forth the terms and conditions including:  

 

 MORPC shall award up to $600,000 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a 

Transportation Improvement Program amendment, to the City of Columbus for a qualifying 

project within the MORPC Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area 

 MORPC will assist Smart Columbus in reporting progress on the project’s Key Performance 

Indicators 

 MORPC will report to Smart Columbus Program Office progress and costs incurred on MORPC 

involvement with Smart Columbus 

 MORPC commits to collaborate and coordinate with the Smart Columbus Program Office the 

activities of the MORPC Regional Data Advisory Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. To authorize the Executive Director to execute and meet the terms and conditions of 

an agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for 

performance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for 

amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further 

authorization from this committee.   



Resolution 25-16 

Page 2 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Prepared by:  Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 
 



1 
 

 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

November 2016 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

State of the Region 2017 

MORPC is seeking nominations for its annual State of the Region awards – Regional Leadership 

Award, William Habig Collaborative Achievement Award, and William H. Anderson Excellence in Public 

Service Award. Awards will be presented at the 2017 State of the Region luncheon on April 20 at the 

Greater Columbus Convention Center. Nomination forms are available on the MORPC website and 

due Jan. 6, 2017. Please contact Bernice Cage at bcage@morpc.org for more information. 

 

MORPC Membership News 

The final MORPC member event of 2016 is an informal Holiday Luncheon on Dec. 8 at 12 noon (prior 

to the Commission meeting) at MORPC’s offices. The luncheon program “Lessons Learned”, will be 

an interactive event for Commission members to network and share experiences, best practices, and 

ideas. Thank you to our MORPC Executive Committee members for serving as our conversation 

starters. To attend the event, please RSVP online and for additional details contact Eileen Leuby at 

eleuby@morpc.org.  

 

The City of Pickerington hosted MORPC’s Southeast Regional Collaboration meeting on Nov. 29 for 

our local government members and partners in this area of the region. The program featured a 

variety of updates including the Rickenbacker Area Study, Rickenbacker Airport Master Plan, Central 

Ohio Greenways, and community projects. 

 

Diversity & Inclusion 

Staff attended the Central Ohio Diversity Consortium.  Columbus Mayor Andrew Ginther welcomed 

the group and discussed the City’s new initiatives in Workforce, Outreach, Committees, and 

Suppliers. The topic, “Best Practices in Supplier Diversity Initiatives” was presented by a variety of 

government and business representatives.  

 

Communications & Marketing 

MORPC issued a request for proposals for graphic design services. Staff will select a firm in early 

December to engage in a multi-year contract beginning in 2017.  

 
Media Relations 

See attached report of news releases and media coverage. 

 

Online Communications Efforts 

See attached report for social media and website activity.  

 

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/lkoprowski@morpc.org
mailto:bcage@morpc.org
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/lessons-learned-tickets-28406072327
mailto:eleuby@morpc.org


2 
 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

Transit/Human Services 

DATABus’s first triennial review from FTA is approaching, and staff is working to ensure all of the 

policies and processes are in order. #SmartColumbus information was presented to COTA’s Mobility 

Advisory Board. 

 

Work began on understanding transit items for the Rural Planning Organization (RPO) counties. 

Team Members attended a Union County Transportation Needs Committee meeting for the RPO 

counties. 

 

RideSolutions 

Team Members continue to work with the Columbus and Chillicothe van clinics to encourage 

rideshare. Three more vanpools will be established before the end of 2016. Additionally, Team 

Members are working with SPLT to introduce dynamic ridesharing to Honda employees. 

RideSolutions Team Members hope to have a program operational by first quarter 2017. The 

RideSolutions Team Members met with Columbus State, Denison, and New Albany area employers 

regarding transportation issues for employees and students. 

 

Five proposals were reviewed for the transportation demand management and ride-matching to 

serve OARC MPOs that have rideshare and air quality programs. After an initial review, vendors 

presented their proposals in person, and one vendor was selected. MORPC has begun the contract 

process and the OARC interagency review. 

 

MORPC Attributable Funding 

The Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) met on November 2 and November 16 to identify projects to 

receive new funding commitments. The process will continue on November 30 when the AFC will 

recommend the program of projects to use MORPC funding through FY 2023. A public comment 

period on the program of projects will run from early December to early January. 

 

Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) 

The TRAC held a working session on November 15 to hear ODOT staff’s recommendation for funding. 

The draft TRAC list of projects is to be announced on December 15. 

 

Data and Mapping 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

The Greater Columbus Bike Map is being considered for inclusion in the 2016 ESRI National Map 

Book. 

 

Regional Data Lab 

Both the Communications and Technical sub-committees of the Regional Data Advisory Committee 

(RDAC) met in November. Priority activities around improving data literacy were assigned. These 

include drafting simple messages for varied audiences around the purpose and intent of the RDAC, 

as well as putting together some written pieces about data terminology. There was excellent dialogue 

with representatives from SmartColumbus to clarify the role that the RDAC has in advancing the 

efforts of SmartColumbus beyond the time frame of the grant. 

 

Mayor Tom Kneeland of Gahanna facilitated a focus group of communities to discuss the 

relationship between local governments and the installation of wireless infrastructure in public right-

of-way (ROW). Approximately 10 communities participated. Results will be further discussed at the 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/twalsh@morpc.org
file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org


3 
 

December RDAC meeting to develop recommendations of possible actions to share with the 

Regional Policy Roundtable in January.  

 

Planning and Environment 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 
 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team Members attended the Connect Columbus Open House to review proposals and hear an 

update on the planning effort.  

 

Team Members loaned pedestrian counters to the Short North Alliance for the November Gallery Hop 

data collection efforts. Counters were installed at three locations along High Street during that event. 

Data collected were also integrated into MORPC’s internal count database. 

  

Complete Streets Reviews  

Team members reviewed a feasibility study for the City of Columbus for the Franklin County Alum 

Creek Trail and Johnstown Road project. The study aims to provide safe access to the Alum Creek 

Trail on the west side of I-670 from the East Columbus Neighborhood.  

 

Team Members participated in the Complete Streets Train the Trainer 2-day educational opportunity 

offered by the Ohio Department of Health and Toole Design Group. The program taught methods for 

educating communities and their staff about how to implement complete streets from policy 

development to building facilities. 

 

Statewide Active Transportation Steering Committee  

Team Members met with ODOT representatives to provide guidance and technical assistance in 

establishing a statewide database/repository for non-motorized volume counts. This resource will 

ultimately serve as a central repository for manual and automatic pedestrian and bicycle counts 

collected throughout the region. 

 

Transportation Safety 

Team members reviewed the 20 projects received through SCIP/LTIP applications for current safety 

concerns and the merits of the projects to reduce crashes. This involved scoring projects on a 

combination of total crashes, crash density, crash rate, and severity index. 

 

The 2016 Rickenbacker Area Study assistance included identifying priority safety locations within the 

area, relative density of crashes, and compiling summary crash statistics for the area. 

 

Meetings and Related Training  

Team Members participated in the regularly scheduled Traffic Fatality Review Board meeting. Major 

topics discussed were unique trends in impaired driving and substance abuse counseling/education. 

In coordination with this, look for current safety education campaigns posted to social media.    

 

Team Members participated in the first Older Driver/Pedestrian Team meeting organized by ODOT. 

This group will ultimately contribute to the development of a data-driven emphasis area action plan 

to be included with Ohio’s Strategic Highway Safety Plan, focused on reducing older driver-related 

crashes. 

 

insight2050 Academy  

The first insight2050 Academy class graduated this month after an additional two sessions focused 

on strategies for building community trust and consensus and financial tools to facilitate 

development in one’s community.  

 

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


4 
 

Team Members attended the Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations (AMPO) National 

Conference to present insight2050 in a land use and scenario modeling session. At this same 

conference, MORPC was presented with the AMPO award for Outstanding Overall Achievement for a 

TMA MPO for its leadership on insight2050. 

 

Age-Friendly Columbus 

Age-Friendly Columbus Team Members met with the Ohio Aging Advocacy Coalition to discuss 

partnering through cross-promotion, invitations to events they host, and by sharing information 

gathered from surveys and focus groups. The partnership can help the success of both initiatives by 

building support and influencing action at both the local and state levels. The Ohio Aging Advocacy 

Coalition is a group committed to empowering older adults across Ohio to make policy and other 

changes state-wide.  

 

Director Williams-Scott of the Columbus Department of Neighborhoods met with Team Members to 

discuss how to partner on the Age-Friendly Columbus project. There are many opportunities to 

further engage area commissioners, neighborhood liaisons, 311 representatives, and more.  

 

Age-Friendly Columbus, in partnership with the MORPC Home Weatherization Program, staffed a 

booth at the Senior Living Festival. Over 2,000 adults aged 50 years and older attended. Over 100 

individuals completed the convenience sample survey at the event.  

 

Over 100 older adults involved in the Senior Companions program gathered for focus groups led by 

Age-Friendly Columbus partners and volunteers. The 22 focus group facilitators and recorders were 

trained by the Ohio State College of Social Work as well as the Multiethnic Advocates for Cultural 

Competence prior to leading the focus groups. The Multilingual focus groups were held to learn 

about successes and challenges of aging in Columbus. 

 

Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board  

Team Members participated in the Trail Development Subcommittee meeting where the group 

discussed next steps with mapping and prioritization of Community Trail Connectors in Delaware 

County. In addition, members of the COG Board interviewed three firms for the redesign of the COG 

website. The committee selected the company Basecraft and will begin working with them in 

December.  

 

Green Pact  

The City of Powell hosted a meeting of the Central Ohio Green Pact which included an update on the 

Regional Sustainability Agenda and a presentation by city staff on their sustainability efforts 

highlighting the Murphy Parkway Extension. 

 

Riverfest  

Riverfest will again occur in conjunction with the Columbus Arts Festival during the weekend of June 

9 – 11, 2017.  

 

Watershed Planning  

MORPC began assisting the Franklin Soil & Water Conservation District (FSWCD) with completing a 

Nine-Element Nonpoint Source Implementation Strategic Plan for the Headwaters of Blacklick Creek, 

popularly known as the Upper Blacklick Creek Watershed Action Plan. MORPC will help organize 

stakeholder involvement opportunities and analyze land use and planning policies within the 

watershed. The Plan will be completed by December 31, 2016.  

 

  



5 
 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org 

 

Air Quality  

The MORPC Air Quality program is producing an end-of-ozone-season report which will be presented 

to the Community Advisory Committee and Transportation Advisory Committee at the end of 

November and to Commission in December. Despite the ten exceedances, air quality continues to 

improve in the region which can be attributed to reduced emissions.   

 

A coordinated marketing plan with the Transportation Demand Management team will include a 

similar marketing package as in 2016, a second Commuter Challenge, and the new rideshare 

software for recruiting and retaining Central Ohioans as non-single occupant vehicle commuters. 

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group  

At the Energy and Air Quality Working Group meeting, the Ohio EPA will provide an update, the 

MORPC Air Quality team will give an overview of the end-of-ozone-season report and present the 

2017-20 Regional Sustainability Agenda.  MORPC Director of Energy & Air Quality will provide an 

update on the Franklin County Energy Study. The Working Group will also vote on Chair and Vice 

Chair for 2017. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee  

The proposed Regional Sustainability Agenda was presented in the November meeting of the 

Executive Committee and Commission with the opportunity to provide feedback by November 23. 

The Executive Committee will be asked to move forward a resolution to the Commission for adoption 

at the December meeting.  

 

Materials Management Working Group   

At the Materials Management Working Group, Team Members announced the SWACO funding 

commitment to support the continuation of the working group through mid-2017 and the change to a 

quarterly meeting schedule. The meeting featured a presentation from Brian Roe with The Ohio State 

University titled “OSU’s Food Waste Collaborative: Update & Agenda”. The OSU Food Waste 

Collaborative emerged earlier this year to achieve food waste reduction and management goals 

through outreach, education, research, and program implementation. Representatives from the OSU 

group will continue to engage with the working group on this topic and invite input on the 

development of best practices and resources.  

 

Energy Policy  

There is a lot of activity on energy legislation during the lame duck session regarding the energy 

efficiency and renewable energy standards. Two bills are under consideration – SB 320 and HB 554. 

MORPC has reviewed the bills and is conducting a call between the Sustainability Advisory 

Committee and Regional Policy Roundtable to determine MORPC’s final position on the legislation. 

General understanding is that Governor Kasich may veto any continuation of the freeze of the energy 

standards.  

 

Consistent with MORPC’s position on energy efficiency, MORPC continues to be a part of 

negotiations with AEP-Ohio and other parties on the applications filed by the utility to the Public 

Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO). MORPC’s focus is on improvements that may increase the 

participation of residential and business customers. 

 

Franklin County Energy Baseline Study  

The kick-off meeting is scheduled for November 30, 2016. MORPC staff worked with the County to 

identify and confirm committee members and develop an agenda for the meeting.  There is also an 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/TP3OJL7T/cokeeffe@morpc.org


6 
 

opportunity to expand this work as it applies to a study of the Rickenbacker area conducted by the 

MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Department. 

 

Franklin County Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

MORPC is well ahead of schedule for completing the 2015 funding round of the Franklin County 

Urgent Needs program which runs through June 2017. Currently, there are seven units in production 

and 23 units have been completed.  

 

The 2016 funding round Urgent Needs program utilizing federal funding dedicated to the county has 

resulted in ten projects from the waiting list in process. 

 

Weinland Park Home Repair 

Of the exterior home repair work in Weinland Park, currently there are eight projects in process; 

nearly 60% of the units are completed with the remaining units under construction or out to bid for 

construction to commence.   

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program  

The WarmChoice program has completed nearly 74% of the total jobs through November.  

 

Following the Weatherization Showcase in October, MORPC staff developed a promotional video 

about the weatherization program which is airing on Channel 3.  Staff also attended a Godman Guild 

Housing Resource Fair and provided information about the programs.  Program information was also 

included at a Central Ohio Area Agency on Aging Senior Fair and a MORPC exhibit at the Green 

Energy Ohio Conference.     

 

MORPC is continuing to utilize the additional AEP funding through December 31, 2016.  

This work is for replacement of more efficient lighting and appliances as well as cost sharing 

weatherization measures such as insulation and air sealing for homes that heat or cool using 

electricity.  

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

ICAP 

The Indirect Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) for 2017 is prepared and awaiting ODOT approval. The fringe 

rate is 63% (reduced from 68.5% of direct labor costs) and the overhead rate is 54.5% (reduced 

from 55.5% of direct labor and fringe costs).  

 

Facility Updates 

An ADA Compliant Ledge was installed on the lobby desk making the phone and phone list more 

accessible to visitors. New exterior LED lighting has been installed on the exterior walls and the 

parking lot post lights. 

 

Personnel Updates 

Data & Mapping Data Analyst Liz Whelan began November 28. 

 

Currently, MORPC is recruiting for one open position:  

 Energy Auditor 1 

 

The requirements for these positions are available for review on the website at 

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/job-opportunities/index.. 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/shufstedler@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/job-opportunities/index


7 
 

 

RFP/RFQ Postings 

The following RFP’s/RFQ’s were posted: 

 RFP for Office and Public Meeting Space Lease or Purchase (closed 11/30/2016) 

 RFP for Visual Communication and Graphic Design Services (closed 11/30/2016) 

 RFQ for HVAC Contractor for Residential Energy Program 

 RFQ for Insulation Contractor for Residential Energy Program 

 

The full RFP/RFQs are available at http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/rfps-rfqs/index. 

 

  

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/rfps-rfqs/index


8 
 

ATTACHMENT 

 

MORPC in the News  

MORPC launches new HQ search with request for proposals – Business First 

MORPC Searching for New Downtown Offices – Columbus Underground 

Ohio Politics Now: Will Ohio's Tim Ryan challenge Nancy Pelosi for leadership spot? – The 

Columbus Dispatch 

Refugee Road in Pickerington in line for widening, upgrades – The Columbus Dispatch 

Local governments oppose state's new development bill – The Columbus Dispatch 

Refugee upgrades proposed – ThisWeek Community News/Pickerington News 

Delaware County homeowners worried about newly completed road project – WBNS 10TV 

Long-planned Sawmill Parkway extension opens - ThisWeek Community News/Delaware News  

Sawmill Parkway extension will ease congestion, boost development – The Columbus Dispatch 

Final leg of Sawmill Parkway opens – Delaware Gazette 

Ohio City’s Energy Financing Tool Could Be Start of Regional Trend – Energy Vortex 

Work on Mink St.-Broad St. intersection to take 1 month – The Newark Advocate 

Plank comes aboard as property-maintenance inspector- ThisWeek Community News/Grove City 

News 

Toledo Legal News - News 'Villages' complement other senior services – Toledo Legal News 

The Green Funds of The Columbus Foundation were awarded the Green Collaborative - 

Exploregram 

Honoring Largest Earth Day Event – Columbus Underground 

Major Interchange Upgrades Planned for Delaware County – WBNS 10TV 

ODOT explains ‘Green’ alternative – Sunbury News 

New trail leads to zoo's doors - ThisWeek Community News/Olentangy News 

 

 

MORPC’s online/social media efforts for November provide the following results: 

 MORPC’s Facebook use stayed consistent during the month of November, with our most popular 

post being about Dr. Ned Hill speaking at the county member luncheon on Nov. 10. This post 

reached more than 2.8k people. A post about having Wi-Fi on COTA buses reached 1.2k people 

but also received over 40 likes, comments, and shares – surpassing the average engagement. 

 

 MORPC again gained Twitter followers over the month of November, with 3,163 current 

followers. Having Wi-Fi on COTA was also our top tweet during the month. The top tweet MORPC 

was mentioned in came from NARC Executive Director Leslie Wollack, when she toured the 

Atlanta Beltline with MORPC leadership. 

 

 Website hits at morpc.org dropped from October, which is likely because of Trick-or-Treat being 

over. The site still had more than 13,250 pageviews with 5,000 sessions. Most of these sessions 

continue to be from new visitors who do organic searches. After the homepage, the job 

opportunities page is viewed most. 

 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 22-16: "Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and 

Fund Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission for 2017" 

 

 

This resolution establishes an agency operating revenue budget of $14,668,537 for 

calendar year 2017 and sets authorized appropriation levels for the agency expense 

and capital expenditures budget line items. 

 

The full 2017 operating budget document with comparisons to the 2016 revised 

budget and an executive summary highlighting key elements of the 2017 budget is 

attached. 

 

The additional proposed transfers are as follows: 

 Transfer $500,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account.   

o This transfer will only occur, if needed, in accordance with the 

operating reserve policy.  There is no known reason to anticipate the 

need at this time. 

 Transfer $500,000 into the Operating Reserve to return the funds transferred 

as noted above, if applicable. 

 Transfer $100,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account.   

o This transfer authorization is for the management reserve, if needed, 

to fund new intended revenue-generating activity and/or relatively 

minor shortages in funding for certain programs.   

 Transfer $100,000 out of the main operating account to the Operating 

Reserve.   

o This authorization is for the purpose of transferring positive net 

income from certain program groups to be invested in the Operating 

and Management Reserves in accordance with the Operating Reserve 

Policy. 

 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 22-16 



RESOLUTION 22-16 

 

“Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and Fund Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission for 2017” 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission annually adopts the agency budget and fund account appropriations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the finance team, working with the executive director and all MORPC departments, has 

formulated the 2017 Budget and fund account appropriations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee has reviewed the 2017 Budget and fund account appropriations 

and recommends adoption; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the operating budget attached as page 4 of the 2017 Budget is adopted. 

 

Section 2. That the finance director is hereby authorized and directed to adopt the 2017 fund 

appropriations as shown below and transfer funds up to the amounts listed in the 

transfer appropriation lines below. 
 

    Franklin   
 

Fund Org. County   2017 

No. No. Object   Appropriations 

    Code Account Title Budget 

9013 13570 510000 Salaries $5,170,813 

9013 13570 515000 Fringe Benefits 1,999,413 

9013 13570 520000 

Services & Charges and Ma-

terials 7,233,968 

9013 13570 540000 

Capital outlay – Equipment, 

Property Acquisition & Rehab 200,000 

9043 43570 540000 Capital outlay – Building 10,000 

9043 43570 520000 

Services & Charges and Ma-

terials 200,000 

      TOTAL $14,814,194  

   Initial Transfer(s):  
9043 43570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $50,000  

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $50,000  

     

   Transfer for Operating Reserve 

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $500,000 

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $500,000 

     

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $500,000 

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $500,000 



Resolution 22-16 

Page 2 

 

   Transfer for Management Reserve 

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $100,000 

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $100,000 

    

   Transfer for Operating and Management Reserve 

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $100,000 

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $100,000 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 

necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That the finance director is authorized and directed to make any necessary alloca-

tion changes within a single fund of the appropriations up to 5 percent of the total 

appropriations to accommodate operating and accounting requirements of the Com-

mission. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Matt Greeson, Chair  

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: January 1, 2017 

Submitted by: Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Prepared by:  Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 

 

Attachment:  2017 Budget  

    

 



 
2017 Budget 

111 Liberty Street 
Suite 100 
Columbus, OH 43215 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................. 1 

REVENUE AND EXPENSES BUDGET & SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL 

EXPENDITURES .............................................................................................. 4 

DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES ........................................................................... 5 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS ............................................................... 6 

APPENDIX 

DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT ..................................................7-8 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES ...................................................... 9 

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS .....................................................10 

INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION BUDGET ..............................................11 

 

    TABLE OF CONTENTS !



REVENUE (Funding Sources – Page 9) 

Revenue from federal sources is budgeted to decrease by $301,183 to a total of $7,178,820 which 
accounts for 48.9% of the operating budget.  The primary decrease in budgeted revenue is due to the 
“catching up” and completing previous home repair programs and a reduction in the Home Weatherizaton 
Assistance Program.   
 
State funding is expected to increase by $44,125 primarily due to funding for transportation match and 
other state transportation programs.  The Clean Ohio program is now receiving state funding in the amount 
of $15,000. 
 
Utilities funding of $3,177,256 in 2017 is budgeted to increase by $421,801 primarily as a result of 
Columbia Gas and AEP programs.  Utilities funding is approximately 21.7% of total revenue and remains a 
stable funding area.  

With a budget similar to 2016 in total, the MORPC 2017 revenue budget is $14,668,537, an increase of 
$672,520 (4.8%). However, the details show some changing initiatives and new programs. Here are 
some notable highlights for 2017: 
 

 The Planning & Environment, Data & Mapping, and Transportation Systems & Funding Activities 
departments’ budget increased by $455,666 (6.4%) primarily as a result of continued funding of  
the 5310 Designated Recipient program and the funding earned for reporting vanpool ridership 
and operating costs into the National Transit Database (NTD). These programs that began in 
2015 brought new transportation money into the region focusing on mobility and planning. The 
budget also includes additional funding for the formalization of the Rural Transportation 
Organization to offer transportation planning assistance to many of the rural communities 
outside the MPO area.  The Detailed Revenue by Department schedule, beginning on page 7, 
shows additional detail on project fluctuations from year to year. 
 

 The Energy & Air Quality and Housing department funding decreased by $474,424 (7.4%). As 
expected, this budget anticipates a decrease in the Home Weatherization Program as well as a 
decrease in the Franklin County Home Repair Programs as we have completed older home repair 
programs and the work flow is smoothing out.  A portion of the budget includes funding for 
undetermined projects in anticipation of additional funding and new programs in the energy 
arena. 

 
The fringe rate will be 63.0% of wages in 2017. The indirect cost allocation rate will be 54.5% of direct 
labor in 2017.  Both of these rates have decreased from 2016 while maintaining a strong benefits 
package. Agency costs continue to be analyzed for cost savings opportunities and efficiencies. 

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



2 

EXPENSES (Page 4) 

Foundation/Corporate Funding is projected to be $44,365 in 2017, down $266,635 from 2016, 
primarily as a result of the sunsetting of the Weinland Park home repair program.  
 
Local and Other budgeted revenue is projected to increase by $226,688 to $2,796,093 primarily due to 
various local projects expected across the agency. This includes additional funds from COTA in lieu of 
NTD funding and a local study for Rickenbacker.  Some of this funding is unknown as to a specific source 
for 2017 but presumed to be local for budgetary purposes.  

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

Salaries and fringe benefits are budgeted to increase by $553,845 (8.37%) to $7,170,226 primarily as 
a result of adding additional staff and raises in aggregate of 2.5%.  Staff size was budgeted at 73 FTE’s 
in 2016 and 78.4 FTE’s in 2017. The increase in FTE’s is the result of adding administrative support for 
four departments as well as changing temporary staffing to permanent staffing in the weatherization 
area. 
 
The Materials and Supplies budget of $550,000 in 2017, is the same as 2016.   
 
The Services–Subcontractors budget decreased by $192,499 to $2,786,441 for 2017 as a result of 
multiple fluctuations over MORPC’s various programs in 2017 vs. 2016. 
 
The Services and Charges budget increased by $304,871 to $4,097,527. This is due to the start of 
processing payments to the 5310 subrecipients for current and prior year programs.  
 

 
The capital expenditures budget for 2017 is $210,000. This is a decrease of $85,000 from 2016 since 
we are no longer acquiring property and rehabilitating the property in the Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program (NSP). The 2017 NSP home purchase will be made by Homeport, resulting in subcontractor 
costs to MORPC instead of capital costs.  This budget includes $200,000 for replacement of equipment, 
vehicles and other agency equipment and assets as well as $10,000 for leasehold improvements.  
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (Page 4) 



3 

The total current year member dues budget of $1,004,284 is $68,548 higher than the prior year as a 
result of mitigation adjustments which increased population estimates to better align estimates to the 
U.S. Census.  Additionally building member dues increased from 3.5 cents to 5.25 cents in 2017.  
Approximately $100,092 of this amount is budgeted to contribute toward the building lease expenses.  
$282,928 of the dues are set aside for MPO transportation match. Services to Members makes up the 
majority of the remaining funding with $460,704 budgeted for work for our members such as 
executive director services, proactive legislation and public policy work, and member services 
coordination.  Other notable uses of member dues include $25,000 for diversity and inclusion efforts, 
up to $200,000 (from prior years’ dues) for building due diligence, and $27,700 for strategic 
initiatives. Member Dues represents approximately 7% of operating revenue.    
 
Additionally, the pilot program for associate members has been successful with seven local units of 
government currently participating as members of MORPC at an annual rate of $1,000.   

APPROPRIATIONS (Page 6) 

The appropriations closely mirror the agency operating expenses and capital expenditures, coming in at 
$14,814,194 for 2017. Consistent with the operating expenses, the services & charges area shows the 
largest increase from 2016 as a result of such programs as the 5310 program. 
	

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

USE OF MEMBER DUES (Page 5) 



REVENUE & EXPENSE BUDGET

REVENUE
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND TRANSPORTATION
Jointly Funded Projects (MPO) $2,636,840 $2,829,276 $192,436
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio 205,000 205,000 0
Special Projects 2,256,322 2,346,092 89,770
Ride Solutions 688,268 810,000 121,732
Local Projects Transportation 437,618 835,789 398,171
Other Misc. Environment, Mapping and Transportation 906,437 559,993 (346,444)

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING AND TRANSPORTATION $7,130,485 $7,586,151 $455,666
ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES

Air Quality Awareness $385,020 $400,000 $14,980
Energy Programs 3,954,130 4,082,635 128,505
Housing & Rehab Services 2,065,838 1,447,928 (617,909)

SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES $6,404,987 $5,930,563 ($474,424)

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT $667,055 $716,357 $49,302

OTHER ($206,510) $435,466 $641,976

TOTAL REVENUE $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

Detail Budgets provided on pages 7-8

EXPENSES
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Salaries and Fringe Benefits $6,616,381 $7,170,226 $553,845
Materials and Supplies 550,000 $550,000 0
Services - Subcontractors 2,978,940 $2,786,441 (192,499)
Services & Charges 3,792,656 $4,097,527 304,871
Depreciation 45,540 $57,393 11,853

TOTAL EXPENSES $13,983,517 $14,661,587 $678,070

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $12,500 $6,950 ($5,550)

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SOURCES OF FUNDS
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Cash * $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

USES OF FUNDS
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $100,000 $200,000 $100,000
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 10,000 (15,000)

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

* -  Represents cash from prior year building members dues revenue to be used for building improvements and due dilligence.

 4



DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES

SOURCES: 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

RPC Member Dues ($.29 - 2016, $.29- 2017) $540,398 $552,892 $12,494
MPO Member Dues ( $.19.5 - 2016, $.19.5 - 2017) 331,217 351,300 20,083
Building ($.035 - 2016, $.0525 - 2017) 64,121 100,092 35,971
SUBTOTAL SOURCES $935,736 $1,004,284 $68,548
Withdrawals from Building Maintenance Funds $125,000 $210,000 $85,000
TOTAL SOURCES $1,060,736 $1,214,284 $153,548

USES:

Transportation $263,684 $282,928 $19,244
Foundations Grants & Other 5,000 5,000 0
SUBTOTAL LOCAL MATCH $268,684 $287,928 $19,244

Executive Director Services to Members $70,000 $72,000 $2,000
Proactive Legislative Activity 148,281 162,920 14,639
Public Policy & Multi-jurisdictional 73,266 76,700 3,434
Member Service Coordination 88,710 91,675 2,965
Annual Salary Survey 5,000 5,000 0
Mid Ohio Finance Administrators (MOFA) 1,900 1,450 (450)
Other Services to Members 48,409 50,959 2,550
SUBTOTAL FOR SERVICES TO MEMBERS $435,566 $460,704 $25,138

Executive Director Development $70,000 $70,000 $0
Executive Director & Staff Travel & Registration 10,500 16,300 5,800
Board Travel & Registration 3,600 5,300 1,700
Other Development/Business Development 12,065 2,110 (9,955)
SUBTOTAL DEVELOPMENT FUND $96,165 $93,710 ($2,455)

Strategic Initiatives $32,000 $27,700 ($4,300)
Diversity & Inclusion 21,000 25,000 4,000
Miscellaneous 5,700 2,200 (3,500)
Contingency & Cost Overruns 12,500 6,950 (5,550)
SUBTOTAL OTHER $71,200 $61,850 ($9,350)

Building Lease Expense $64,121 $100,092 $35,971
Building Due Diligence 100,000 200,000 100,000
Leasehold Improvements (Capital Expenditures) 25,000 10,000 (15,000)
SUBTOTAL OTHER $189,121 $310,092 $120,971

TOTAL USES OF MEMBER PER-CAPITA FEES $1,060,736 $1,214,284 $153,548

 5



ACCT # ACCOUNT TITLES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

SALARIES 
Salaries - Regular $4,755,547 $5,125,813 $370,266
Salaries - PTO and Sick Leave Payout 45,000 45,000 0

510000 SUBTOTAL SALARIES $4,800,547 $5,170,813 $370,266
FRINGE BENEFITS

PERS - Regular $665,777 $717,614 $51,837
PERS - PTO and Sick Leave Payout 6,300 6,300 0

SUBTOTAL PERS $672,077 $723,914 $51,837
Medicare Tax $69,608 $74,977 $5,369
Unemployment Compensation 5,400 10,500 5,100
Workers Compensation 47,376 70,000 22,624
Fringe Benefits Other (includes group 1,021,373 1,120,022 98,649
medical, dental, vision, life and disability)

515000 SUBTOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $1,815,834 $1,999,413 $183,579
$6,616,381 $7,170,226 $553,845

MATERIALS, SERVICES & CHARGES 
Materials & Supplies $550,000 $550,000 $0
Services & Charges:

Subcontractors $2,978,940 $2,786,441 ($192,499)
Services and Charges 3,272,656 3,577,527 304,871
Rent and Utilities 450,000 450,000 0
Travel 70,000 70,000 0

520000 SUBTOTAL SERVICES & CHARGES & MATERIALS $7,321,596 $7,433,968 $112,372
$13,937,977 $14,604,194 $666,217

Capital Expenditures
Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $200,000 $200,000 $0
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 10,000 (15,000)

540000 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $225,000 $210,000 ($15,000)

$14,162,977 $14,814,194 $651,217TOTAL

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS

 6



APPENDIX 



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND 
TRANSPORTATION 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MPO (Jointly Funded Projects)
Federal Highway Administration $2,109,472 $2,263,421 $153,949
Ohio Department of Transportation 263,684 282,928 19,244
MORPC Transportation Match 263,684 282,928 19,244
SUBTOTAL OF JOINTLY FUNDED PROJECTS $2,636,840 $2,829,276 $192,436

Infrastructure (OPWC/members)
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $205,000 $205,000 $0

SUBTOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM $205,000 $205,000 $0

Special Projects
Regional Supplemental Planning $481,688 $179,464 ($302,224)
Regional Development (insight2050) $248,007 $278,561 $30,554
5310 Designated Recipient 1,243,937 1,587,492 343,555
Rural Transportation Partnership - Buckeye Hills 21,996 32,662 10,666
Rural Transportation Planning Organization Pilot 90,427 267,914 177,487
Freight Trends Study 45,600 0 (45,600)
Special Projects 124,667 0 (124,667)
SUBTOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS $2,256,322 $2,346,092 $214,437

Ride Solutions
Ride Solutions $688,268 $810,000 $121,732
SUBTOTAL RIDE SOLUTIONS $688,268 $810,000 $121,732

Local Projects
Targeted Area Bus Pass Program 100,000 0 (100,000)
Competitive Advantage Program 113,650 277,000 163,350
Homes on the Hill 15,000 0 (15,000)
New Albany Traffic Forecasting 0 14,000 14,000
Data & Mapping, Other 25,000 33,887 8,887
Rickenbacker Study (NUC) 100,000 120,170 20,170
Various Local Transportation Projects (NUC) 83,968 390,732 306,764
SUBTOTAL LOCAL PROJECTS $437,618 $835,789 $398,171

Planning & Environment
Greenways Program 194,657 180,000 (14,657)
Age-Friendly Columbus 209,165 269,993 60,828
Safe Routes to School Conference 267,893 0 (267,893)
Summit On Sustainability 70,000 90,000 20,000
Local Foods 25,000 20,000 (5,000)
OWDA - Greater Ohio Policy - Phase 2 20,000 0 (20,000)
Various Planning & Environment Projects (NUC) 119,722 0 (119,722)
SUBTOTAL PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT $906,437 $559,993 ($346,444)

TOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION $7,130,485 $7,586,151 $580,333

NUC = Not Under Contract

 7



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Air Quality
Air Quality Awareness $385,020 $400,000 $14,980
SUBTOTAL FOR AIR QUALITY $385,020 $400,000 $14,980

Energy 
Columbia Gas WarmChoice $2,138,054 $2,411,956 $273,902
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 776,847 496,455 (280,391)
AEP Community Assistance Program 317,400 452,000 134,600
USF EPP Program 300,000 313,300 13,300
Franklin County Energy Study 100,000 110,365 10,365
Energy Project/PACE 25,000 20,000 (5,000)
Materials Management 0 7,609 7,609
Local Government Energy Partnership (NUC) 0 100,000 100,000
Various Energy & AQ Projects (NUC) 296,829 170,949 (125,880)
SUBTOTAL FOR ENERGY $3,954,130 $4,082,635 $128,505
SUBTOTAL ENERGY AND AIR QUALITY $4,339,150 $4,482,635 $143,485

HOUSING SERVICES
Residential Rehabilitation Programs
FC Urgent Repair Program 1,049,452 737,800 (311,652)
Homeport / PACT Home Repair Program 72,000 63,000 (9,000)
United Way Home Repair Program 154,890 116,000 (38,890)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 374,030 374,000 (30)
Weinland Park Program 310,999 44,365 (266,634)
Mortgages Forgiven 23,800 32,264 8,464
FC Issuer Fees and Monitoring $12,297 $10,500 ($1,797)
Franklin County HAB $12,415 $10,000 ($2,415)
Various Rehab Projects (NUC) $55,955 $60,000 $4,045
SUBTOTAL FOR HOUSING SERVICES $2,065,838 $1,447,928 ($617,909)

TOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES $6,404,987 $5,930,563 ($474,424)

NUC = Not Under Contract

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Services to Members $435,566 $460,705 $25,139
Development Fund 96,164 93,710 (2,454)
Building Lease Payments 64,122 96,182 32,060
Other 71,203 65,760 (5,443)
TOTAL MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT (See Dues Page for 
Details) $667,055 $716,357 $49,302

OTHER 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Other Revenue
RidePro HUB/WEB $20,000 $60,000 $40,000
Local Government Internship Program 10,800 $12,000 1,200
CMS Shared Services 200 $3,000 2,800
State of the Region Luncheon 75,000 $84,000 9,000
Interest 5,000 $5,000 0
Building Due Diligence * 100,000 $210,000 110,000
Indirect Costs Variance (carryforward from prior years) (181,618) ($204) 181,414
Fringe Benefits Variance (carryforward from prior years) (235,892) $61,671 297,563

TOTAL OTHER ($206,510) $435,466 $641,976

GRAND TOTAL $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

* Building Due Diligence is funded from prior years' Member Dues

 8



Schedule of Funding Sources

FUNDING SOURCES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MEMBER DUES $935,736 $1,004,284 $68,549
FEDERAL FUNDING
Federal Highway Administration (MPO funding) $2,109,472 $2,263,421 $153,949
FTA/FHWA (other funding) 3,161,187 3,264,879 103,692
Ride Pro HUB/WEB/Trip 20,000 60,000 40,000
HUD - CDBG, HOPE 3 & Other 1,085,666 780,064 (305,602)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 314,030 314,000 (30)
Other Federal 12,800 0 (12,800)
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 776,847 496,455 (280,392)
SUBTOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING $7,480,002 $7,178,820 ($301,183)
STATE FUNDING
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO funding) $277,126 $282,928 $5,802
Ohio Department of Transportation Other 20,000 43,324 23,323
Ohio Public Works Commission (Infrastructure/Clean Ohio) 65,000 80,000 14,999
SUBTOTAL STATE FUNDING $362,127 $406,251 $44,125
UTILITIES $2,755,456 $3,177,256 $421,801
FOUNDATION/CORPORTATE FUNDING
Weinland Park/Cols Fdtn/Campus Partners/Chase $311,000 $44,365 ($266,635)
SUBTOTAL FOUNDATION/CORPORATE FUNDING $311,000 $44,365 ($266,635)
LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $140,000 $125,000 ($15,000)
Greenways Planning 164,655 180,000 15,345
Summit on Sustainability 70,000 90,000 20,000
Housing Local Contracts 342,342 548,081 205,739
Environment, Mapping & Transportation Local Funds 1,241,879 1,368,670 126,791
State of the Region 75,000 84,000 9,000
Energy and Air Quality 419,329 170,342 (248,987)
Local Government Internship Program 10,800 12,000 1,200
CMS Shared Services 200 3,000 2,800
Other 100,001 210,000 109,999
Interest 5,000 5,000 0
SUBTOTAL LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING $2,569,206 $2,796,093 $226,888
Interperiod Overhead Receivable/(Reserve) ($181,618) ($204) $181,414
Interperiod Fringe Benefits Receivable/(Reserve) (235,891) 61,671 297,562

TOTAL REVENUES BY FUNDING SOURCE $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

 9



SUBCONTRACTORS BY DEPARTMENT 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION
Regional Supplemental Planning $40,000 $40,000 $0
Greenways Funding 5,000 0 (5,000)
Regional Development (insight2050) 0 125,000 125,000
Age-Friendly Columbus 0 35,000 35,000
Rickenbacker Study (NUC) 0 20,000 20,000
Other Local Transportation Projects (NUC) 0 50,000 50,000
SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL, MAPPING & TRANSPORTAION $45,000 $270,000 $225,000
Energy & Air Quality
Air Quality Awareness $70,000 $70,000 $0
Columbia Gas WarmChoice 860,719 1,141,356 280,637
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 260,627 78,642 (181,985)
AEP Community Assistance Program 111,721 131,443 19,722
Franklin County Energy Study 0 65,000 65,000
SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY $1,303,067 $1,486,441 $183,374
Housing Services
United Way Home Repair 121,890 72,000 (49,890)
Homeport / PACT 55,200 48,000 (7,200)
Weinland Park Program 206,000 40,000 (166,000)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 364,131 344,000 (20,131)
FC Urgent Repair Program 883,652 476,000 (407,652)
Local Government Energy Partnership (NUC) 0 50,000 50,000
SUBTOTAL HOUSING SERVICES $1,630,873 $1,030,000 ($600,873)

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $2,978,940 $2,786,441 ($192,499)

NUC - Not Under Contract

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

 10



Indirect Cost Allocation Budget
January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

DIRECT LABOR TOTAL INDIRECT
LABOR & COST

& FRINGES ALLOCATION

Environment, Mapping & Transportation $3,632,349 $1,979,630
Energy & Air Quality, Housing Services 1,578,073 $860,050
Member Dues 242,632 $132,235
Other Grants & Programs 16,678 $9,090
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding (400,136) ($218,074)

TOTAL GRANTS & PROGRAMS $5,069,597 $2,762,931

Indirect Labor

Information & Technology Services $205,451

Finance  598,099

Public & Government Affairs 317,533

Executive Management 373,758

Human Resources & Administration 163,732

Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 12,791

TOTAL INDIRECT LABOR $1,671,364

General Overhead Expenses

Materials & Supplies $79,109

Services & Charges 500,963

Rent & Utilities 323,600

Other General Overhead 167,691

TOTAL GENERAL OVERHEAD $1,071,363

Retention/Severance $20,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $2,762,727

ACTUAL INDIRECT RATES 54.50%

Carry Forward Balance as of  12/31/15 $204

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS $2,762,931

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS RATES 54.50%

INDIRECT GENERAL 

LABOR OVERHEAD TOTAL

Information & Technology Services $205,451 $236,636 $442,087

Human Resources 119,172 141,388 260,560

Administration 44,560 355,712 400,272

Retention/Severance 0 20,000 20,000

Finance  598,099 236,746 834,845
Public & Government Affairs 317,533 57,000 374,533
Executive Management 373,758 6,672 380,430
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 12,791 37,209 50,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $1,671,364 $1,091,363 $2,762,727

 11



111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

T 614.228.2663 
TTY 614.228.2663 

www.morpc.org 



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kim Maggard, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 23-16: "Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 

Public Policy Agenda" 

 

 

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission’s 

(MORPC) 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. A working group consisting of members of 

MORPC’s Board, Regional Policy Roundtable, and other regional leaders collaborated 

to create a robust and well-defined public policy agenda. It consists of strategic 

initiatives and collaborative efforts that directly represent the interests and concerns 

of Central Ohio.   

 

The Public Policy Agenda was first presented and approved by the Regional Policy 

Roundtable at its October meeting. The agenda was then presented to the MORPC 

Commission in November.  

 

The 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda serves as a framework for MORPC’s staff, 

members, and government affairs consultant. The public policy agenda was 

developed to implement a successful advocacy program and educate policymakers 

and community leaders about the work, goals, and impact of MORPC. It is a living 

document that will evolve as important changes and issues arise in the region. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 23-16 

 



RESOLUTION 23-16 

 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda” 

 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the  

Regional Policy Roundtable collaborated to create a robust and well-defined 2017-2018 Public Pol-

icy Agenda; and 

 

WHEREAS, it describes MORPC’s initiatives and collaborative efforts for the years 2017 and 2018, 

which directly relate to its mission, goals, and objectives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda provides a framework to advocate for policies that  

encourage making Central Ohio more competitive in a global marketplace while improving the quality 

of life in Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda provides direction to MORPC members and staff in 

order to act in concert with those initiatives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda was designed to address important public policy is-

sues and legislation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda will help MORPC be a leader in regional, state, and 

national policies; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Kim Maggard, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

Prepared by:  Joe Garrity, Public Affairs Coordinator  

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: January 1, 2016 

Attachment:  2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

1 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda 
*Approved by Regional Policy Roundtable and edited by Exectuive Committee 11/8/16* 

 

Lead–Opportunities for legislative and public 

policy leadership 
Goal 1: Promote regionalism at the local, state, and federal levels of 

government fostering economic growth, prosperity, efficient use of 

resources, and a high quality of life for Central Ohio residents.  

 Advocate for policies and legislation that enhance local government efficiency, collaboration, 

and the sharing of data and services. 

 Promote insight2050 and advocate for policies and legislation that will provide Central Ohio 

with the needed tools and resources to plan for the projected increase of up to one million 

people by 2050. 

 Highlight the valuable roles, responsibilities, and rights of local governments to improve the 

quality of life, environment, and economy.   

 Support federal and state tax and budget policies that balance the promotion of economic 

growth, while also ensuring the ability to provide vital local government services. 

 Work with our regional partners to identify significant projects and grant opportunities to 

benefit the region. 

 Position MORPC as a leading resource and innovator in regional planning strategies. 

 Promote policies, programs, and funding to ensure our region's transportation, fiber, water, 

sewer, and material management infrastructure are well maintained, affordable, vital, and 

resilient. 

 

Goal 2: Achieve an advanced and exceptional transportation system 

that connects Central Ohio's people and products to the world. 

 Seek additional revenue and innovative long-term funding mechanisms for transportation at 

the local, state, and federal levels. 

 Promote state and federal support and recognition of metropolitan and rural planning 

organizations, and their regional approach to transportation planning and funding. 

 Advance the importance of the logistics industry to Central Ohio and support investments 

and innovation in the region's inland port, including intermodal, rail, air, and other freight 

facilities. 

 Support sensible legislation and policies that measurably improve transportation safety. 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

2 

 

 Advocate for an advanced, multi-modal transportation system that improves our region's 

access to more effective and efficient public and private transportation choices to connect to 

regional, national, and international markets. 

 Pursue policies and funding to expand transportation options to: work, education, 

health care, and social services. 

 Pursue policies and funding to advance the Central Ohio Greenways strategy for 

developing a more interconnected regional trail network. 

 Advocate for policies and support efforts that leverage Smart Columbus and the 

Northwest U.S. 33 Smart Mobility Corridor and incorporate data and intelligent 

transportation systems technologies, including connected vehicle technologies, and 

other related efforts. 
 

Goal 3: Conserve and enhance the natural resources, water, air, and 

land in our growing region. 

 Advocate for innovative strategies and funding to maintain air quality attainment, reduce 

emissions, and protect health by working with public and private partners. 

 Advocate for policies, innovative strategies, and funding to maintain and protect the quality 

and quantity of our water resources, balancing public and private sector interests, and 

traditional and new economic activities in our growing region. 

 Support and advocate for policies and funding for a timely cleanup and redevelopment of 

brownfields and/or vacant, blighted, or abandoned land and historic buildings in order to 

revitalize communities. 

 Pursue funding and policies to help protect and secure parkland, wetlands, trails, and green 

space. 

 

Goal 4: Promote energy efficiency and an abundant supply of safe, 

reliable, and affordable sources of energy for our growing region. 

 Promote energy efficiency and conservation, as well as renewable and cleaner energy. 

 Advocate for federal, state, and local energy policies and utility programs that foster 

economic growth, resiliency, and adoption of diverse forms of energy. 

 Promote the importance of the benefits associated with energy efficiency policies, funding, 

and programs. 

 Support innovative funding tools for public agencies, businesses, and nonprofit organizations 

to finance energy infrastructure improvements. 

 Assist in the rapid deployment of electric and alternative fuel vehicles and the establishment 

of charging and fueling infrastructure within the region.  

Collaborate - Opportunities to form coalitions 

with like-minded organizations 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

3 

 

Economic Development 

 Promote a robust economy for the region and active collaboration with JobsOhio, 

Columbus2020, MODE, business organizations, and local governments to pursue national 

and state policies and funding to advance economic development. 

 Promote projects and policies that advance local food systems and farmland preservation to 

achieve food security. 

 Improve access to workforce training and to resources that enhance the financial stability of 

our region’s low- and moderate-income households. 

 Promote widespread deployment of connected fiber optic infrastructure and enhanced 

innovative funding to support collaboration around data usage. 

 Advance job attraction incentives, new tools, and strategies to encourage new jobs and 

investment to the region. 

Sustainable Growth 

 Promote efficient and effective use and management of waste streams through reuse and 

recycling programs that reduce environmental impacts and contribute to the economic 

competitiveness of the region. 

 Advocate for innovative land-use regulations and planning tools as a way to: promote 

sustainable growth; maintain and reuse existing housing and commercial buildings; conserve 

environmentally sensitive areas; encourage farmland preservation; reduce energy 

consumption; provide transportation alternatives; and promote effective material 

management. 

 Promote the development of policies that support lifelong and age-friendly communities. 

 Support policies and incentives that leverage existing infrastructure and encourage 

redevelopment and reinvestment in Central Ohio's neighborhoods and commercial districts. 

 Advocate for policies and funding that support a broad spectrum of housing options, 

including mixed-income communities, to meet the region's growing residential and workforce 

needs. 

 Promote innovative use of data and technology to support sustainability and resiliency of the 

region. 

Federal Funds 

 Support federal funding for defense installations, research, and other initiatives that benefit 

Central Ohio. 

  

 Participate in coalitions and partnerships for MORPC local government members to 

understand, engage, and better position themselves for federal funding through 

appropriations, authorizations, bills, grants, and other possible options. 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

   Executive Committee  

   Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM:   Commissioner Steve Stolte, Union County 

   Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

 

DATE:  December 2, 2016 

 

SUBJECT:  Proposed Resolution 24-16: “Adoption of MORPC’s 

2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

 
   

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission’s (MORPC) 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda. This 

Agenda replaces one that was previously-adopted for 2016-2017. A 

subcommittee of the Sustainability Advisory Committee (SAC) conducted a 

comprehensive and extensive process to recommend a Regional 

Sustainability Agenda for 2017-2020. This document will serve as a 

framework for MORPC’s staff and working groups to guide the work and 

programming towards a more sustainable region.  

 

This Agenda is aligned with MORPC’s Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

(MTP) and includes consideration for other regional plans and initiatives, 

such as MORPC’s Public Policy Agenda, insight2050, Sustaining Scioto, 

and Regional Energy Action Plan. Input was also sought from MORPC 

members and working groups.   

 

The Regional Sustainability Agenda was presented and approved by the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee on October 18, 2016. It was then 

presented to the Executive Committee and the Commission in November 

for feedback and to address any questions.  

 

The 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda may evolve as important 

issues and key concerns arise throughout the next four years. MORPC will 

track progress annually, with an official report at its Summit on 

Sustainability. Further, the SAC will review the annual performance and 

provide any recommendations for improvements. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 24-16  

 

 



RESOLUTION 24-16 

 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the  

Sustainability Advisory Committee collaborated to recommend the 2017-2020 Regional 

Sustainability Agenda to replace the one adopted from 2015-2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Sustainability Agenda’s vision is of a diverse community of local 

governments and stakeholders collaborating on environmentally and economically 

sustainable practices, opportunities, and tools that support regional growth and vitality in 

the Central Ohio region; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda provides a framework for the 

goals and objectives that guide MORPC’s Sustainability Advisory Committee, working groups 

and staff; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Sustainability Agenda is developed by incorporating the goals of the 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan and consistent with other previously-adopted plans, such 

as the Public Policy Agenda; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 1 is “Reduce per capita energy consumption and promote alternative fuel 

resources to increase affordability and resilience of regional energy supplies”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 2 is “Protect natural resources and mitigate infrastructure vulnerabilities to 

maintain a healthy ecosystem and community”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 3 is “Position Central Ohio to attract and retain economic opportunity to 

prosper as a region and compete globally through sustainable practices and solutions”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 4 is “Create sustainable neighborhoods to improve residents' quality of life”; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 5 is “Increase regional collaboration and educational opportunities to 

advance innovative sustainability solutions”; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is committed to furthering sustainability-focused programming and 

solutions that contribute to the overall health, quality of life and economic prosperity of the 

region; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and 

execute and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal 

counsel, he shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of 

this resolution. 

 

 



Resolution 24-16 

Page 2 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 

resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by:  Steve Stolte, Union County Commissioner, Sustainability Advisory  

    Committee Chair 

Prepared by:  Christina O’Keeffe, Director of Energy and Air Quality, and Kerstin Carr,  

    Director of Planning and Environment  

Authority:   Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 

Attachment:   2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda 



2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda -- Goals & Objectives
Approved by the Sustainability Advisory Committee on 10.18.2016

OBJECTIVES Baseline Target 2020 Target Strategy

1.1 OBJECTIVE: Reduce vehicle miles traveled.

9,700 vmt per capita *2013 ODOT VMT on 

roadways with functional classification of 

collector and above (source: MORPC, 2013)

9,200 vmt per capita (5% reduction) A, U, V, W

1.2
OBJECTIVE: Reduce the percentage of commuters driving alone and increase the 

percentage of commuters riding transit, bicycle or walking.

82% of commuters drive alone; 

5% of commuters ride transit, bicycle, or walk 

(source: MORPC, 2015)

80% of commuters drive alone;

 6% of commuters ride transit, bicycle, or walk 
A, U, V, W

1.3 OBJECTIVE: Increase the percentage of vehicles using alternative fuels.
XX% of registered vehicles use alternative fuels 

(data and methodology under development)

XX% of registered vehicles use alternative fuels 

(data and methodology under development)
X, S

1.4 OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of trail miles traveled annually.
12 million Central Ohio Greenways trail miles 

traveled annually (source: MORPC, 2015)
13 million Central Ohio trail miles traveled annually N, Y

1.5 OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of alternative fuel stations.

145 alternative stations  (EV, E85, CNG, LNG, 

BD) with 127 identified as public acess and 18 

identified as private (source: USDOE, 2015) 

220 alternative fuel stations (50% increase with 

work of Smart City to install EV)
X, S, GG

1.6 OBJECTIVE: Reduce per capita energy consumption across all sectors.

344 mmBTU per capita in Central Ohio, 332 

mmBTU per capita in Ohio, and 316 mmBTU 

per capita in U.S. (source: Energy Information 

Administration, 2010 and MORPC Regional 

Energy Action Plan, 2014)

50% reduction in the gap of per capita total energy 

consumption between Central Ohio and U.S. 
B, C, D, GG

1.7
OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of local renewable energy projects and generating 

capacity. 

346 certified renewable energy facilities with                                                           

29.79 MW total generating capacity (source: 

PUCO, 2015)

500 certified renewable energy facilities with 37.5 

MW  total generating capacity (25% increase)
Z, GG

2.1 OBJECTIVE: Reduce emissions to meet federal air quality standards.
Ozone Non-Attainment, PM2.5 Attainment 

(source: Ohio EPA, January 2015)
Ozone Attainment, PM2.5 Attainment U, V, W, X

2.2
OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of people receiving Air Quality information and 

education.

12,087 people receiving Air Quality Alerts;                                           

750,000 Air Quality Alert highway sign 

exposure; 398,000 exposed to information 

through media marketing (MORPC and ODOT, 

2016)       

10% increase in number of people receiving a 

combination of Air Quality Alerts, Air Quality Alert 

highway sign exposure, and media marketing 

exposure

G, H

2.3
OBJECTIVE: Reduce the amount of municipal solid waste per capita disposed in the 

landfill. 

4.25 lb per person per day of solid waste 

disposed in the landfill (source: SWACO, 2014)

4.0 lb per person per day (6% reduction) of solid 

waste disposed in the landfill
AA

2.4 OBJECTIVE: Minimize greenfield development and promote infill and redevelopment.
44% of development occurred inside the urban 

area since 2010 (source: MORPC, 2016)

50% of development occurred inside the urban area 

between 2010 and 2020.
P, KK

2.5 OBJECTIVE: Reduce per capita water consumption.

XX gallons of water per capita consumed 

(source: Columbus, Del Co Water Inc, 

Marysville, and Westerville, 2015)

5% reduction in gallons of water per capita 

consumed 
E, M

2.6 OBJECTIVE: Improve water quality in the Upper Scioto Watershed. 
79.5% of Upper Scioto Watershed sampling 

sites are in attainment  (source: OEPA, 2016)

85% of Upper Scioto sampling sites are in 

attainment 
E, I, JJ

3.1
OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of businesses in Central Ohio with established 

sustainability policies and practices.  

1,000 GreenSpot businesses (source: 

Columbus, 2016)

20% increase in the number of GreenSpot 

businesses 
D, M, FF

3.2
OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of adopted institutional purchasing policies that 

support the purchase of local food.

X adopted institutional local food purchasing 

policies (data and methodology under 

development)

x% increase in adopted institutional food 

purchasing policies (data and methodology under 

development)

R, K,  JJ

4.1
OBJECTIVE: Encourage MORPC member communities to adopt complete streets 

policies or policies that contain those elements.

14% of MORPC member communities have 

adopted complete streets policies or policies 

that contain those elements (source: MORPC, 

2015)

45% of MORPC member communities have adopted 

complete streets policies or policies that contain 

those elements

P, BB, U, L

4.2
OBJECTIVE: Target infrastructure development to serve a higher number of people and 

jobs and increase sidewalk coverage of arterials and collectors.

4.3 people + jobs per acre are within 3/4 mile 

of arterials; 

36% of arterials and collectors have sidewalks  

(source: MORPC, 2015)

5 people + jobs per acre are within 3/4 mile of 

arterials; 

40% of arterials and collectors that have sidewalks

P, V, Y

4.3 OBJECTIVE: Reduce the number of fatalities and serious injuries from crashes.

0.69 fatalities per 100 million VMT; 

6.4 serious injuries per 100 million VMT; 

Number of non-motorized fatal and serious 

injuries: 138 (source: ODPS, 2015)

0.63 fatalities per 100 million VMT; 

5.83 serious injuries per 100 million VMT; 

10% reduction in nonmotorized fatalities and 

serious injuries

J

4.4
OBJECTIVE: Target transit and bikeway infrastructure development to serve a higher 

number of people.

70% of population live within 3/4 mile of a 

transit stop;

71% of population live within 3/4 mile of a 

bikeway (source: MORPC, 2015)

72% of population live within 3/4 mile of a transit 

stop; 

72% of population live within 3/4 mile of a bikeway

P, DD, EE, Y

4.5
OBJECTIVE: Increase the annual number of income eligible households receiving free 

weatherization and safety-related home repairs.

1,216 households served in the 15 county 

region (source: Columbia Gas and Home 

Weatherization Assistance Program, 2015)

5% increase in the number of households served C, GG

4.6 OBJECTIVE: Increase the number of Central Ohio Greenways trail miles.
126 miles of Central Ohio Greenways trails built 

(source: MORPC, 2016)

Build 20 additional miles of Regional Greenways 

Trails
N

5.1
OBJECTIVE: Establish the annual Summit on Sustainability as a premiere 

environmental conference through high participation and visibility.
550 attendees (source: MORPC, 2016) Increase attendance by 10% annually O

5.2 OBJECTIVE: Increase number of local governments committed to sustainability. 
28 of MORPC members are Green Pact 

members (source: MORPC, 2016)

100% of MORPC members are Green Pact 

members
FF

GOAL 1: Reduce per capita energy consumption and promote alternative fuel resources to increase affordability and resilience of regional energy supplies.

GOAL 2: Protect natural resources and mitigate infrastructure vulnerabilities to maintain a healthy ecosystem and community. 

GOAL 3: Position central Ohio to attract and retain economic opportunity to prosper as a region and compete globally through sustainable practices and 

solutions.

GOAL 4: Create sustainable neighborhoods to improve residents' quality of life.

GOAL 5: Increase regional collaboration and educational opportunities to advance innovative sustainability solutions.



2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda - Strategies

ID Potential Strategies Energy
Natural 

Resource
Economic

Neigh-

borhood

Colla-

boration

A

Build a coalition of businesses, public agencies, and other employers committed to establishing commuter 

incentives and programs that enable employees to use alternate modes and telecommuting to reduce single-

occupant vehicle commutes. 

X

B
Create baseline energy study(ies) in order to identify the opportunities for investment in energy efficiency and 

renewable energy projects and initiatives. 
X

C
Expand marketing efforts and partnerships with local governments and other organizations to increase the 

number of residents served by free home weatherization, home repair, and electric baseload services.
X X X

D
Enable MORPC's local government members to lead by example through energy benchmarking of public 

buildings, energy audits, building retrofits, and public outreach programs. 
X

E
Establish a forum on climate change impacts on water supply, water quality, and treatment based on the 

results of the Sustaining Scioto Climate Change Adaptation Plan.
X

F
Encourage participation in the statewide data depository via MORPC committees and in collaboration 

with the Regional Data Advisory Committee.
X X X X X

G
Seek out networks of vulnerable populations to more efficiently communicate Air Quality Alert information to 

individuals who most need to receive it. 
X

H
Improve availability and user experience of Air Quality Alert transmission such that individuals can receive 

this information easily using the appropriate devices, platforms, and most effective messaging.
X

I
Encourage development of engineered green infrastruture projects in our region through providing best 

management practices and information sharing.
X

J
Support and advance transportation policies and projects that have proven to be effective in reducing 

fatalities and serious injuries.
X

K
Promote an educational outreach program with local government officials on establishing agricultural 

enterprises within their jurisdiction.
X

L

Continue to enforce MORPC's Complete Streets policy and encourage lcoal, state, and federal agencies to 

incorporate Complete Streets elements when developing roadway projects to create a transportation system 

that serves all users. 

X X

M
Utilize the Columbus GreenSpot program at a regional level to increase the number of businesses and 

residences committed to sustainable practices. 
X X

N
Implement the strategies as identified in the 5-year action plan as approved by the Central Ohio Greenways 

Board.
X X

O
Extend the reach of the Summit on Sustainability to both public and private stakeholders by attracting 

locally and nationally renowned speakers and highlighting local innovation.
X X X X X

P
Promote the findings of insight2050 and provide tools and resources to assist local government and 

developers in planning for the future.
X X

Q Utilize the Public Policy Agenda to advance the goals of the Regional Sustainability Agenda. X X X X X

R
Identify and utilize public and private funding sources to conduct an Institutional Demand Study on local food 

to develop a baseline on institutional local food purchasing.
X

S
Assist with and learn from the SmartColumbus and US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor initiatives and share best 

practices with other Central Ohio communities.  
X

T Explore diverse funding models that sustain program development and implementation. X X X X X

U Collaborate to reduce the need for vehicle travel through development regulations. X X X

V

Create travel demand management (TDM) partnerships among the facilitators and providers of alternative 

modes of transportation, community leaders, and institutions that make up high-density trip-generating 

districts.

X X X

W
Improve marketing of regional travel demand management (TDM) programs to increase use of transit, ride-

share, bicycling, and walking
X X

X Create plans and partnerships to attract investment in alternative fuel vehicles and infrastructure. X X

Y
Expand bicycle and pedestrian networks through the implementation of complete streets and multi-use path 

connections.
X X

Z
Encourage the use of PACE as a financing tool for local renewable and energy efficiency commericial building 

projects. 
X

AA
Convene regional stakeholders to share best practices regarding reuse and waste reduction and serve as a 

resource for local governments.  
X

DD
Assist transit system operators and other transportation partners to improve fixed-route and demand-

response transit service.
X

FF Incentivize communities to become Green Pact members. X X

GG
Collaborate with gas and electric utilities on programs and resources to benefit local governments, 

businesses, and residents.
X X

HH 
Leverage the expertise and resources of the Sustainability Advisory Committee and other regional 

partners.
X X X X X

II
Understand and anticipate the impacts to the region of new or revised federal and state regulations.

X X X X X

JJ Encourage sustainable agricultural practices. X X

KK

Encourage  business site selection partners to identify locations for companies in brownfield and infill areas 

where feasible.
X

Bold italic = Strategies that are overarching to every goal



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, November 10, 2016 

1:50 p.m. 

 
Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Pat Blayney 

Stacey Boumis 

Susan Brobst 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Carolyn Casper 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

William Dorman 

Matt Greeson 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Tim Lecklider 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Cornell Robertson for Dean 

Ringle 

David Simmons 

Ted Simon 

Thom Slack 

Joe Stefanov 

Curtiss Stitt 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Christie Ward 

Nancy White 

Carrie Woody 

 

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman 

Terry Emery 

Bill Habig 

Eric Phillips 

Steve Stolte 

  

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney Tim Moloney

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Nathaniel Kaelin 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone 

 

Guests 

Mike Schadek, City of Columbus Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

 

Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 1:50 p.m. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

The Attributable Funding Committee (AFC) met November 2 and is working to determine which 

projects will receive funding from the $70 million available. New project requests total $185 million. 

The next AFC meeting is November 16.  

 

The Rickenbacker Area Study will be a 2-year comprehensive study that includes housing, economic 

development and transportation. The study is separate from the Columbus Regional Airport Authority’s 

(CRAA’s) Rickenbacker Airport Master Plan. The MORPC Rickenbacker Study Committee and the CRAA 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

November 10, 2016 

Page 2 

 
Rickenbacker Committee are co-presenting at the November 29 Southeast Regional Collaboration 

Group Meeting. Both committees are meeting in December.  

 

MORPC received notification that there is a new solicitation from U.S. DOT for FASTLANE funding, 

which focuses on freight corridor funding, for up to $850 million. Applications are due December 15.  

 

Proposed Resolution T-15-16 on the consent agenda amends the SFY 2017 Planning Work Program to 

support a project to work with other Ohio Association of Regional Council members to establish one 

multi-regional ridesharing system that will be shared by Metropolitan Planning Organizations in various 

regions of the state. MORPC received a Local Government Innovation Fund grant to hire a consultant 

to help with the project. An RFP was issued and Team Members are now reviewing proposals. The new 

system should be ready Spring 2017. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Steve Campbell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, a second was made; motion passed. 

 

insight2050 Phase II Update – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & Environment Director 

Kerstin Carr gave an Update on insight2050 Phase II. Phase II had four focus areas: outreach, peer learning, 

best practices, and development resources. Over 150 presentations have been given since 2014. The 6-week 

insight2050 Academy, which was offered this year for elected and appointed officials and local government 

staff, will be offered again in 2017. A Resource Library, Photo Gallery, and Case Studies Database are now 

available online at getinsight2050.org. Phase III includes a Technical Assistance Program which will be rolled 

out next year. Ms. Carr recognized MORPC insight2050 Staff Lead Jennifer Noll. 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-10-2016insight2050.pdf
http://getinsight2050.org/


 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-16-16: "Accepting MORPC as the Prime 

Holder of a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and 

Ridematching System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of 

Regional Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos" 
 

Proposed Resolution T-16-16 is accepting MORPC as the prime contract holder with 

RideAmigos and subcontract with OARC and other participants for TDM and 

Ridematching services. The intent of this resolution is a result of the OARC Air Quality 

and Rideshare Subcommittee’s year-long commitment to improve air quality and 

rideshare management and administration. MORPC Commission Resolution 21-16 

authorizes the Executive Director to enter in to a contract with RideAmigos.  

 

The Air Quality and Rideshare Subcommittee of the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC) decided to further advance Transportation Demand Management 

(TDM) services and programing for its MPO members and others with funding from 

the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) from the Ohio Development Services 

Agency (ODSA). 

 

OARC hired and worked with a professional consultant to conduct a feasibility study 

on the advancement of TDM throughout the Ohio regions represented by Ohio’s 

MPOs. The study viewed TDM as the wide array of programs and policies that 

effectively make up an MPO’s strategy to encourage the more efficient use of 

transportation infrastructure by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) on the 

transportation system (i.e., reducing the demand of single-occupancy vehicles (SOVs) 

on roads). The study also suggests OARC adopt the viewpoint of TDM as a means to 

enhance mobility options in a manner that contributes to local economic 

development strategies and the promotion of placemaking. 

 

As an outcome of the feasibility study to advance and promote TDM programs and 

policies, OARC sought proposals for a comprehensive web-based TDM platform that 

will be the backbone of future TDM services provided to the general public. To create 

efficiencies, this platform will combine and enhance the current ridematching 

services provided by OhioRideshare and RideshareOhio into one scalable TDM 

platform. This platform will go beyond standard ridematching services (i.e., static 



 

Resolution T-16-16 memo 

Page two 

rideshare matchlist reporting) and incorporate comprehensive TDM services that 

allow MPOs and others to support and incentivize the many alternative transportation 

options available to travelers that will reduce VMT.  

 

Additionally, as recommended in the feasibility study, OARC sought a robust TDM 

platform that capitalizes on the various personal mobility options available to the 

workforce as a means to promote place-making strategies developed by local 

governments and enhance economic development opportunities sought by local 

Chambers of Commerce. The TDM platform will have the capability for MPOs to 

manage relationships with employers, area mobility managers and human services 

where staff can then help administer TDM programs unique to each 

employer/activity center that wishes to capitalize upon this economic development 

resource. 

 

A copy of the RideAmigos proposal is available upon request.   

 

Attachment: Resolution T-16-16 



RESOLUTION T-16-16 

 

“Accepting MORPC as the Prime Holder of a Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and 

Ridematching System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) with 

RideAmigos” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) is designated as the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the Columbus 

metropolitan area; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a member of OARC with other Ohio MPOs that have air quality and rideshare 

programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, OARC has an Air Quality and Rideshare Subcommittee that sought to upgrade and 

combine two distinct and incompatible commuter rideshare platforms into one robust platform with 

data analysis tools to serve multiple areas in Ohio that would assist in the reduction of single-

occupancy vehicles (SOVs), vehicle emissions, and administrative costs for users; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee and MORPC hired a professional consultant using Local Government 

Innovation (LGIF) grant funds from the Ohio Development Services Agency to conduct a feasibility 

study and assist the OARC Subcommittee in writing an RFP to solicit and choose a vendor; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee members included staff from MORPC and the following MPOs 

1. Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study (AMATS) 

2. Eastgate Regional Council of Governments [Youngstown] 

3. Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC) [Dayton] 

4. Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (NOACA) [Cleveland] 

5. Ohio-Kentucky-Indiana Regional Council of Governments (OKI) [Cincinnati] 

6. Toledo Metropolitan Area Council of Governments (TMACOG) 

worked collectively through the process in selecting a vendor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee unanimously selected RideAmigos as the vendor to combine and 

enhance the two dated systems into a current state-of-the-art comprehensive web-based TDM 

platform; and 

 

WHEREAS, other entities such as mobility managers, human service agencies, activity centers and 

employers in Ohio will have the opportunity to use it; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s Executive Director will be authorized to enter into a contract with RideAmigos as 

described in MORPC Commission Resolution 21-16; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its meeting on November 28, 2016 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its meeting on November 30, 2016 recommended 

adoption of this resolution by the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

 

 



Resolution T-16-16 

Page two 

 

Section 1. That it hereby accepts MORPC as the prime holder of the RideAmigos contract and 

subcontract with OARC MPOs and others.   

 

Section 2. That the Executive Director is authorized to enter into a contract with RideAmigos as 

described in MORPC Commission Resolution 21-16.  

 

Section 3. That this resolution be forwarded to ODOT and OARC members as evidence of this 

acceptance by the Transportation Policy Committee. 

 

Section 4. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal  

  deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption  

  of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

             

Date 

 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

  



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

 

FROM: 

 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 
 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016

SUBJECT: 

 

Proposed Resolution T-17-16: “Amending the State Fiscal Year 

(SFY) 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program 

Including Changes to Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA’s) 

Section 5307 Program of Projects” 
 

Proposed Resolution T-17-16 will add or modify six projects on the SFY 2016-2019 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over $146 

million. These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance using the 

identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint. In January, the Ohio 

Department of Transportation (ODOT) will ask the Federal Highway Administration 

(FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to amend the Statewide TIP to 

include these changes.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of 

each project, including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components. The 

amendment includes two projects with MORPC-attributable funding commitments: 

 

 Columbus: COTA Sidewalks Phase 2  

 COTA: SFY 2017 Bus Replacement 

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP. 

 

Columbus opened bids for construction of COTA Sidewalks Phase 2 in September. 

The bids were significantly greater than the consultant’s estimate. The city 

determined that the unit prices on the bids were much higher than the statewide 

averages used in the consultant’s estimate, but closer to the amount the city has 

received on other recent bids. The city received 10 bids on the contract, and believes 

it has received a good price.  

 

The city has requested that the total cap on attributable funds be increased to the 

construction phase from approximately $2.6 million to $3.3 million. The request 

includes a transfer of $100,000 from the right-of-way phase that is no longer 

needed. 



Resolution T-17-16 Memo 

November 23, 2016 

Page 2 

 

COTA (Central Ohio Transit Authority) requested the following modifications to the TIP: 

 Modify 5307 funding to the McKinley Avenue Facility Renovation in the 

following ways: 
o Reduce SFY 2015 funding from $13,044,093 to $3,586,500. 
o Increase SFY 2017 funding from $4,000,000 to $10,861,593. 

 Modify funding for the 2017 Bus Replacement in the following ways: 
o Reduce 5307 funding by $567,100, bringing it to $4,381,700. These 

funds originally included buses for the Cleveland Avenue BRT, which 

are now included in a separate project. 
o Increase MORPC CMAQ funding by $49,801, bringing it to $874,600, 

for 80 percent of the cost of two buses. COTA requested additional 

funds because of price increases. 
 

ODOT District 6 requested the following modifications to the TIP: 

 Add a portion of the US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor project, which will install 

conduit and fiber optics between Dublin and East Liberty. The Federal 

Highway Administration recently announced it has awarded $6 million to 

Marysville, Dublin and Union County to deploy connected vehicle applications 

in the corridor. These funds will be used in a separate project to install fiber 

on local routes and other Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) devices.  

 Modify the scope of a rehabilitation project on the West Outerbelt to include 

the addition of one lane in each direction.  

 Add a right-of-way phase to a project to modify the intersection of SR 104 at I-

71 and Frank Road.  

 

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachments: 

 Project Map 

 Proposed Resolution T-17-16 

 

 



!!

!

!

")

#*

§̈¦70

§̈¦270

§̈¦270

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦71

£¤33

£¤23

£¤23

£¤40

£¤33

£¤33

£¤62

£¤36

£¤23

£¤42

£¤40

£¤36

£¤62

£¤42

¬«656

¬«161

¬«161

¬«229

¬«521

¬«665

¬«315

¬«37

¬«3

¬«750

¬«37

¬«256

¬«674

¬«317 ¬«16

¬«3

¬«204

¬«710

¬«310

¬«104
¬«317

¬«203

¬«605

¬«745

¬«61

¬«257

WOODTOWN RD

TR E NTON R D

M AIN ST

MINK STRE E T R D

S S
EC

TIO
N 

LIN
E R

D

MOCK RD

TAYLOR RD

FRANK RD

ELDER LN

H
OR S E SH O E

RD

SUMMIT VIEW RD

POLA R IS PK WY

LEW IS C ENTER RD

HOLTON RD

E COLL EGE AV E

PA
RS

ON
S A

VE

CHESHIRE RD

GL ICK R D

LI
BE

RT
Y

R D

N 
SU

NB
UR

Y R
D

SNOUFFER RD

DARBY
CRE EK

DR

S U LLIVA NT AV E

E MAIN ST

REFUGEE RD

W LA N E AV E

COSGRAY RD

WILLIAMS RD

FISHINGER RD

WEST CASE RD

HARD RD

T RABUE RD

ROBERTS RD

DUBL IN
R D

G EORG ESVIL LE R D

WA
TK

IN
S R

D 
SW

KA
RL

 RD

JOH NSTO WN R D

HOM E RD

KING AVE

ORION PL

E A STO N W AY

KI
TZ

M
I LL

ER
R

D

WH ITE R D

P O R
T

R D

HA
MI

LT
ON

 R
D

B IX B Y RD

ROW E R D

SUNBURY R
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE RD

R EFU GEE R D

G
AN

TZ
RD

LAZELLE RD

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
AV

E

RADNOR RD

ROHR RD

H OSKINS R D

CENTERBURG

R D

AR
LIN

GT
ON

 AV
E

W INCHESTER RD N W

HE
ND

RO
N 

RD

NO
RT

ON
R D

N OR TON R D

MA
IZE

 RD

GROVES RD

LEE
 RD

S OL
D

3C
HW

Y

E WHITTIER ST

W INCH ESTER PIK E

H AR RIO TT R D

CHATT ER TON R D

B OW
TOWN

R D

E LIVINGSTON AVE

A GLER R D

ALKIRE RD

FISHER RD

C OUN TY
R O

AD
6 0

5

HOME RD

B R IGG S R D

LI THO POL IS RD

E LON G ST

MORSE RD

GROVE CITY RD

OP OS SUM RUN
RD

JO
YC

E
A V

E
FA

IRW
OO

D 
AV

E

E 17TH AVE

BRAND R D

E 2ND AVE

EB
RI

GH
T R

D

DELL ING E R R D

HYATTS RD

SH
OO

K 
RD

DERING AVE

SP
IN

DL
ER

 R
D

MCCUTCHEON RD

N 
SP

RI
NG

 R
D

E HUDSON ST

PARK RD

BETHEL RD

TU
S S

I C
ST

RE
ET

RD

W GR A NV ILLE ST

B IG
RUN SOU T H

RD

E 5TH AVE

IN
DI

AN
OL

A A
VE

E 11TH AVE

R ENS CH RD

MORSE RD

MCK INLEY
AVE

N 
LIB

ER
TY

 ST

AVERY RD

E WEBER RD

CLA R K STATE R D

S Y
EA

RL
IN

G 
RD

B URN T
POND

RD

C LIM E RD

S HIGH ST

FERRIS RD
COR R RD

LO
CK

BO
UR

NE
 RD

THURMAN AVE

OAK ST

E COOKE RD

E LINCOLN AVE

VA N S VA LLE Y R D

H O
OV

ER
RD

LAN C ASTE R
AVE

INNIS RD

HO
UK

 RD

G EMIN I PL

WATKINS RD

PEAC HB LOW R D

G R EENLA W N AV E

L EON ARD SB U RG R D

W M O UN D ST

BR
UC

K 
ST

M A IN R D

GORSUCH RD

AIRPORT RD

CONCORD RD
REFUGEE RD NW

CEMETERY RD

S L
IBE

RT
Y S

T

OL IV E GR EEN R D

SU
MM

IT 
RD

 SW

H AR RISBUR G LON D O N RD

RO
ME

 CO
RN

ER
S R

D

E NORTH BROADWAY

W SC HR OC K R D

OBETZ RD

ROS EHILL
RD

SCIOTO DA RB Y CR EEK R D

CU
RT

I S
RD

LUKENS RD

BA
RN

ET
T R

D

HALL RD

CLIME RD
N

K ILB O U RN E R D

MI
LN

OR
 R

D

S H
IG

H 
ST

PA

N HAN D LE
RD

CO
ND

IT 
RD

H AVEN S C OR NER S R D

DAVID RD

DEMPSEY RD

CA
RR

OL
L-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

S LIBERTY ST

HILL
 RD

NOE
BIX BY RD

M ILL S R D HARTFORD RD

B ER L IN STATION R D

LANE RD

GR OVEPO RT R D

MONKEY HOLLOW RD

ZUBER RD

HA R T R D

RING S R D

MARCY RD NW

D ILDINE R D

WALNUT ST
M U IR FIEL D

DR

BR I ND LE RD

FO NTANELLE R D

HAYES RD

SLOUGH RD NW

FANCHER RD

DAV IS R D

G ARDN ER RD

N
TH

RE
E

B'
S

&
K

R D

N 
CO

UN
TY

 LI
NE

 RD

N OLD 3 C HW Y

O

RE
GO

N
RD

TH
OM

AS
 R

D

N GALENA RD

COUNTY HOME RD

BEATTY RD

KROPP RD

HOUCHARD RD

HE ADLE YS M ILL RD
SW

COOVER RD

STEAMTOWN RD

WILSON RD NW

JONES
R D

TAW AY R D

ST
EIT

Z R
D

PATTE RS O N RD

HU
NT

LE
Y

RD

N
H IGH

ST

S AW
M

ILL
P K WY

ALT ON
&

DARBY
CREEK

RD

COLE
RD

ST
EL

ZE
R R

D

FR ANTZ
R D

AMITY RD

KENNY
RD

N HAGUE AVE

HO
LT

 RD

N
YE

AR
LI

N G
R D

SA
WM

ILL
 R

D

AM
AN

DA
-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

BA
BB

ITT
 R

D

M
IN

K
ST

SW

RE
ED

 R
D

WILCOX RD

W ORTH
IN

GTO
N

RD

PI
CK

E R
I N

G T
O N

R D
N W

LONDONR D

AFRICA RD

DUNHA M
RD

LA
CK

EY
 O

LD
 ST

AT
E R

D

TRE
MONT R

D

N 
CA

SS
AD

Y A
VE

TR
OY

 RD
OSTRA NDER RD

GE
ND

ER
 R

D

WA R R ENS BU RG R D

RE
YN

O L
DS

BU
RG

-N
EW

AL
BA

N Y
R D

LIN
W

OR
TH

RD

L E A P
R

D

HI LL IA R D
R O

M
ER D

GA
LL

O W
AY

RD

S
UN

BU
RY

RD

FLI
NT

 RD

CO
UR

TR
IG

HT
 R

D

S G A L ENA RD

AL
TO

N
RD

M
IL

LE
R-

PA
UL

RD
A L UM

CR EE K
D R

N WILSON RD

WALK ER RD

POST RD

BR
ICE

 R
D

S O
LD

 ST
AT

E R
D

SMOTHERS RD

L

O NG RD

ST
YG

LE
R R

D 
N

SS
PR

I N
G

R D
N 

JA
ME

S R
D

PO N TIUS
RD

N
OL

D
S T

AT
E

RD

BO
WE

N 
RD

SCHLEPPI RD

AV
ER

Y
R D

LEPPERT RD

ELLI OTTRD

RED
BA

NK
RD

MC
NA

UG
HT

EN
 R

D

LOTT
RD

ASHLEY
R D

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N 
RD

L A
W

R EN
CE

RD

N 
WA

GG
ON

ER
 R

D

CE
DA

R 
HI

LL
 R

D 
NW

UL
R Y

R
D

BO
WE

N 
RD

 N
W

SC
HO

TT
 R

D

CA
R T

ER
'S

CO
RN

E R
RD

B I
GG

E R
T R

D

H ARL EM
R D

PENN R D

YO
RK

 RD
 SW

DELAWARE

DELAWARE

FA
IRF

IEL
D

LIC
KIN

G
FR

AN
KL

IN

DELAWARE

FRANKLIN

29
4217
932651

2657

26
5726572657

Bell Rd

R y an Pk wy

Mitchell-Dewitt Rd

Je rome Rd

Adams Rd

Brock Rd

Industrial Pkwy

Warner Rd

Mckitric
k Rd

Wells Rd

Taylor Rd

Currier Rd Hyland-Croy Rd

Converse Rd

Crottinge rRd

2672

2657

3231

2559

3079

GALENA

OSTRANDER

ASHLEY

GAHANNA

BEXLEY

WHITEHALL

RIVERLEA

URBANCREST

VALLEYVIEW

OBETZ

GRANDVIEW
HEIGHTS

BRICE

MINERVA
PARK

CANAL
WINCHESTER

LITHOPOLIS

SHAWNEE
HILLS

LOCKBOURNEHARRISBURG

WORTHINGTON

WESTERVILLE

UPPER
ARLINGTON

PICKERINGTON

POWELL

SUNBURY

DELAWARE

DUBLIN

HILLIARD

COLUMBUS

GROVE
CITY

GROVEPORT

PATASKALA

NEW
ALBANY

REYNOLDSBURG

26
57

S Grant Ave

Mt Vernon Ave

E Main St

E Whittier St

Pa
rso

ns
 Av

eW Mound St

N
So

ud
er

Av
e

Mo
und St

Plato Dr

Naghten St

Reinhard Ave

E Town St

Cleveland Ave

Oak St

S Souder Ave

E Gay St

Mohawk St

E Nationwide Blvd

E Mound St

S Hartford Ave

S Front St

Sta rli ng St

W Whittier St

W State St

Hickory St E Long StE Chestnut St

Mcdowell St

S 3Rd St

Harmon Ave

Ma rc on iB lvd

E Fulton St

Leste rDr

N Grant Ave

Hamilton Ave

Ne
il A

ve

S c ioto
Blv

d

£¤40

£¤62

£¤33

£¤23

§̈¦70

§̈¦71

§̈¦670

DOWNTOWN   COLUMBUS

Mid-Ohio Region al Plan n in g Com m ission
111 Liberty Street

Colum bus, Ohio 43215
614.228.2663
Novem ber 2016

Please check www.m orpc.org for
updates to this m ap an d project listin g.

SFY  2016-2019
Tran sportation  Im provem en t Program

Resolution T-17-16
Amendment to the TIP
Project Location Map

±
0 3 6

Miles

The information shown on this map is compiled from various
sources available to us which we believe to be reliable.

n:\arcgis\core\tip\2016_2019\tip amndmt t-17-16.mxd nov16

This m ap prepared in
cooperation  with the
U.S. Departm en t of

Tran sportation ’s Federal
Highway Adm in istration
an d Federal Tran sit

Adm in istration , the Ohio
Departm en t of

Tran sportation ,  an d
local com m un ities.

Major Widening
New Road

New Interchange
Minor Widening/Safety Improvement

Interchange Modification
Intersection Modification

Maintenance/Resurfacing
Bridge Repair/Replacement

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Streetscape/Study/Other
Bikeway/Sidewalk/Transit
Streetscape/Study/Other

MORPC Project Identification

Construction Phase
FY 2016 - 2019

Construction Phase
after FY 2019

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

#*

!(

!(
#*

!(

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

!(

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

(Construction not part of TIP)

")

")

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

Planning Area

100 100100 100 100 100100 100

#*#*

ID Project
2778 COTA 2017 Bus Replacem en t

Un m apped Projects



RESOLUTION T-17-16 

 

“Amending the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program Including 

Changes to Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA’s) Section 5307 Program of Projects” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution  

T-12-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, Columbus has requested the modification of one project on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown 

in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Transit Authority has requested the modification of two projects on the 

2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) has requested the addition and 

modification of projects on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on November 28, 2016, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on November 30, 2016, recommended approval 

of this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2016-2019 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2016-2019 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent air quality conformity 

approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 



Resolution T-17-16 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment:  Amended Project Information for the SFY 2016-2019 TIP 



Resolution T-17-16

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: Columbus PID: 95553 TIP ID: 2657 MTP ID:  555/ 557

Project Type(s): Sidewalks Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Sidewalks-Phase 2 Length (mi.): 0.98

Right-of-Way $780,352TEA-M2015 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Sidewalks Phase 2, Sidewalks, 3 segments: 

(1) Kenny Rd from Kendale Rd to Francisco Rd

(2) E Campus View Blvd & Huntington Park Dr from N High St to Crosswoods Park and Ride.

(3) Dierker Rd from Henderson Rd to Bethel Rd.

Sidewalk on 2 sides.  1.96 mi. added to ped network.

Multi-use path. Path on Dierker Rd only: 10' wide multi-use path on the west side.  No bicycle facility on other 

segments. 0.5 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Right-of-Way $195,088Local2015

Construction $2,522,928TAP-M2017 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $770,433Local2017

Total: $4,268,801

Agency: COTA PID: 91748 TIP ID: 2559 MTP ID:  142

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA McKinley Ave-Renovation Length (mi.):

Construction $10,861,593Sec 53072017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 1600 McKinley Ave Facility Renovation, Transit Activity, Phase 3B includes construction of a new bus wash and 

dayroom addition and renovation of the 2nd floor Customer Call Center. 11.44.03

Not Applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $4,734,697Sec 53392017

Construction $37,911,727Local-Transit2017

Total: $53,508,017

Tuesday, November 29, 2016 Page 1 of 3



Resolution T-17-16

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 95018 TIP ID: 2778 MTP ID:  142

Project Type(s): Transit Replacement Capital Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA 2017 Bus Replacement- Length (mi.):

Other $4,381,700Sec 53072017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 2017 Bus Replacement, Transit Replacement Capital, replacement of 13 diesel buses with the same number 

CNG buses. MORPC CMAQ funding used for 2 of the buses.

No information provided.

No information provided.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $874,600CMAQ-M2017 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Other $218,650Local2017

Other $1,095,425Local-Transit2017

Total: $6,570,375

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 103719 TIP ID: 3231 MTP ID:  334

Project Type(s): ITS Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: LOG-033-Smart Mobility Length (mi.): 31.37

PE-Detailed Design $382,000STP-S2017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

US-33 from SR-347 (Logan Co) to I-270, ITS, Intelligent Vehicle Systems, Install conduit and fiber optics between 

Dublin and East Liberty along the US-33 corridor.

None. 

None. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Detailed Design $95,500State2017

Construction $6,424,131STP-S2017

Construction $1,606,033State2017

Total: $8,507,664

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 76469 TIP ID: 2672 MTP ID:  375

Project Type(s): Major Widening/Minor Pavement Rehabilitati Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR270-09.15 Length (mi.): 7.94

Right-of-Way $1,203,677State2017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-270 (West Outerbelt) from I-70 to US-33, Major Widening from 6 lanes to 8 lanes & Minor Pavement Rehabilitation, 

add one lane in each direction, 3.5" overlay, joint repair, signs, guardrail, drainage, lighting. Work on five pairs of 

mainline structures.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $43,000,000GARVEE2017

Construction $23,606,325State2017

Total: $67,810,002

Tuesday, November 29, 2016 Page 2 of 3



Resolution T-17-16

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 99885 TIP ID: 3079 MTP ID:  385

Project Type(s): Intersection Modification Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-SR104-07.57 Length (mi.): 0.61

PE-Detailed Design $600,000State2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Jackson Pk (SR-104) at Frank Rd/I-71, Intersection Modification, This project will realign SR-104 beginning 0.5 mi 

south of the existing interchange through the interchange to the bridge over the Scioto River.  Existing braided ramps 

will be eliminated as

No information provided.

No information provided.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Detailed Design $350,895State2017

Right-of-Way $900,000HSIP2017

Right-of-Way $100,000State2017

Construction $3,353,166HSIP2019

Construction $372,574State2019

Total: $5,676,635

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

CMAQ-M Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to MORPC $874,600

GARVEE Federal Advance Construction Paid with State Bonds $43,000,000

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $4,253,166

Local Local Public Agency $1,184,171

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $39,007,152

Sec 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $15,243,293

Sec 5339 Transit Bus and Bus Facilities $4,734,697

State State Transportation Funds $27,935,004

STP-S Surface Transportation Program, Attributable to the State $6,806,131

TAP-M Transportation Alternatives, Attributable to MORPC $2,522,928

TEA-M Transportation Enhancement, Attributable to MORPC $780,352

Grand Total $146,341,494

Tuesday, November 29, 2016 Page 3 of 3



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

DATE: 

 

December 2, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-18-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the 

Smart Columbus Project" 
 

Proposed Resolution T-18-16 is authorizing the Executive Director to execute an 

agreement with the City of Columbus to support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

The Smart Columbus Project is the result of planning and awards received as the 

winner of the U.S. Department of Transportation Smart City Challenge. Through the 

USDOT’s vision, the city and its partners, including MORPC, has proposed the 

development of a multi-component transportation project deploying smart 

technology.  

 

The city will build elements of “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation system 

showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people 

to transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, 

reduce carbon emissions, and enhance mobility.” This project will have 

transformative effects on municipal transportation and will be a blueprint for 

transferable technology throughout the region, the nation and the world. 

The agreement memorializes MORPC’s support of the Smart Columbus Project via 

provision of funding, materials, goods, or technical support. Specific terms of the 

agreement include MORPC commitments of:  

 

 $600,000.00 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a Transportation 

Improvement Program amendment for a qualifying project within the MORPC 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area  

 Reporting associated MORPC progress and costs associated with the 

project’s Key Performance Indicators  

 Collaboration and coordination with the MORPC Regional Data Advisory 

Committee. 

 

 

Attachment: Resolution T-18-16 



RESOLUTION T-18-16 

 

“Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support 

the Smart Columbus Project” 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus has been selected as the winner of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation Smart City Challenge, aimed at creating “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation 

system showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people to 

transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, reduce carbon 

emissions, and enhance mobility;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus will receive federal and private grant awards totaling up to $50 

million from the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) and Paul G. Allen’s Vulcan, Inc. to 

implement “a holistic, integrated approach to improving surface transportation performance within 

[the] and integrating this approach with other smart city domains such as public safety, public 

services, and energy;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus is leveraging those investments to form partnerships with a 

consortium currently numbered at 27 public and private entities, securing additional funding and in-

kind contributions currently valued at $90 million to bring its Smart Columbus Vision to fruition; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes that the advancements conceived of during the Demonstration 

Deployment period of the Smart Columbus Program will have transformative effects on municipal 

transportation and will be a blueprint for transferable technology; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC has offered its patronage to Columbus through the provision of funding, 

materials, goods, or technical support as part of that effort without expectation of receiving 

remuneration or tangible benefits from Columbus; and  

WHEREAS, the purposes of this Agreement are to memorialize the partnership between the PARTIES 

and to set forth the terms and conditions including:  

 

 MORPC shall award up to $600,000 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a 

Transportation Improvement Program amendment, to Columbus for a qualifying project 

within the MORPC Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area 

 MORPC will assist Smart Columbus in reporting progress on the project’s Key Performance 

Indicators 

 MORPC will report to Smart Columbus Program Office progress and costs incurred on MORPC 

involvement with Smart Columbus 

 MORPC comments to collaborate and coordinate with the Smart Columbus Program Office 

the activities of the MORPC Regional Data Advisory Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. To authorize the Executive Director to execute an agreement with the City of 

Columbus to Support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

Section 2. That MORPC meet the terms and conditions of the agreement.  

 

 



Resolution T-18-16 

Page two 

 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal  

  deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption  

  of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

             

Date 

 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

  




